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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Report 6n the Audit of the Financlal Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AIBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited (the Bank),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the profit and loss
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash
flow statement for the year then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the
branches excepl for 19 branches which have been audited by us and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of signilicant accounting policies and other explanatory information
and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, profil and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof
conform wilh the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the
information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XX
of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the loss, the other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationat Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable In
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Stardards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
apinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annuat Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financlal statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially Inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears o be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement

of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to rep})rt in this regard,
-,
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Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017) and for such Internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporling process,
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to ohtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that inctudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a gquarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional Judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtainan understanding of internat controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue

as a going concern,
A
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion;

a) properbooks of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companles Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have been found adequate for the
purpose of our audil;

b) the statement of financial position, the profit or loss account, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement (together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies

- Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have
come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank; and

d> zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIH of 1980), was deducted
by the Bank and deposited in the Centra! Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance,

2. We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total
Islamic financing and related assets of the Bank.

The engagement parktner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Shaikh Ahmed
Salman, .

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi ‘

Date: 0¥ March 2019

Aonembet firm of Ernst & Young Global bimnited



ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECENBER 2018

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

|
The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures [ and )i form an integral part of these financial statements.
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C ief Executive Officer

Chief Financlal Offlcer

2018 2017 2016
Note  —rrrecmmmmccamaes {(Rupees in '000) -----—-—--vevere-
Restated Restated
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 14,934,799 ‘8,915,585 18,725,350
Balances with other banks 6 854,171 2,932,165 984,125
Due from financial institutions 7 - 5,095,411 2,692,703
Invesiments 8 21,345,325 19,393,486 24,601,518
Islamic financing and related assets-net 9 75,011,976 71,203,056 66,785,266
Fixed assets 10 2,310,578 2,361,576 2,617,734
Intangible assets 11 1,572,861 1,720,577 1,884,535
Deferred tax assets 12 3,238,909 3,238,985 2,873,137
Other assets 13 9,644,420 7,791,652 7,547,688
128,813,039 122,652,383 128,712,056
| YABILITIES
.. .3 payable 14 3,697,477 3,658,120 3,809,415
Due to financial institutions 15 3,836,022 3,209,400 3,223,109
. Deposils and other accounts 16 99,915,011 96,622,925 103,320,059
Subordinated debt 17 3,746,377 2,642 852 1,428 568
Deferred tax liabilities - - -
Other liabilities 18 6,913,069 5,756,875 5,441,402
118,107,956 111,890,172 117,322,553
NET ASSETS 10,705,083 10,762,221 11,389,503
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital-net 19 13,106,862 13,106,862 13,106,862
Reserves 159,348 169,348 159,348
Surplus an revaluation of assets 20 353,212 171,734 404,662
Accumulated foss {2,814,339) (2,675,723) {2,281,369)
10,705,083 10,762,221 11,369,503
=)
21




The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures | and li form an integral part of these financial statements.

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECENBER 2018

Note

PProfit / return earned on Islamic financing and related assets,

investments and placements 22
Return on deposits and other dues expensed 23
Net spread earned
Other income
Fee and commission income 24
Dividend income
Foreigh exchange income
Loss on securities 25
Other income 26
Total other income
/
Y .l Income
Other expenses
Operating expenses 27

. Workers' Weilfare Fund

Other charges 28
Total other expenses
Profit / (loss) before provisions
Provisions and write offs - net 29
Exira ordinary / unusual items
Loss before taxation
Taxation 30
Loss after taxation
(
l.oss per share - basic / diluted 31

.f}
s

2018

2017

-------- {(Rupees in '000) «wueune-

8,031,610 6,717,570
(3,814,832} {3,077,721)
4,216,778 3,639,849
682,801 668,143
36,269 44 489
384,271 172,915
{31,330) (10,757)
24,757 93,026
1,096,768 967,796
5,313,546 4,607,645
(4,782,531) (4,929,047
(5,998) {24,317)
{4,788,529) (4,953,364)
525,017 {345,719)
{770,029) {185,354)
{245,012) (5631,073)
{8,7186) 141,635
{253,728) {389,438)

------------ Rupee ——-cmuueee
(0.18) (0.28)

g
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECENBER 2018

2018 2047
Note ---- {Rupees in '000) ----
Loss after taxation for the year (253,728)  (389,438)
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:
Movement in surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments - net of tax 181,978 (220,578)
items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligations - net of tax 14,817 (5,211)
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax (205) (12,055)
14,612 (17,266)
Total comprehensive loss (57,138) (627,282}
[ L WY

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures | and Il form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance as at 31 December 2016 {as reported)

Effect of retrospeclive changes In accounting policies

ALBARAKA BANK {PAKISTAN) LEIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Surplus / {Deflcit) on
revaluation of

Reclassification of surplus on revaluation of assets to equity -

Balance as at 31 Decomber 2016 (restated)

Loss after {axalion for the year
QOther comprehensive loss - nel of tax

Transfer from surplus on revaiuation of

assels {o accumulaled loss - nel of lax

2-"co as at 31 Decembor 2017 (rostated)

Less after taxation for the current year

Other comprehensive Income - net of fax

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of

assels to accumulaled loss - net of tax

Balance as at 31 Decomber 2018

The annexed notes 1 to 48 and annexures | and I form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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hief Executive Officer

Discount Non
Sharc on issue Statutory Investments Banking Accumulated Total
capital reserve loss
of shares Assets
e rerusEriTerEAEAE fAMedemd ko men {RUpees in "000) --wmemmmmmee e e
13,739,628 {632,766) 159,348 - - {2,281,369) 10,984,841
- - 58,985 345,677 - 404,662
13,739,628 (632,766) 159,348 58,985 345,677 {2.281,369) 11,389,503
- - - - - {389,438) (389,438)
- - . {220,578)  (12.055) (5211)  (237,844)
. ) - - (295) 295 -
12,739,628 (632,766) 159,348 {161,593) 333,327 {2.675,723) 10,762,221
- - - - - (253,728) {253,728)
- - - 181,978 {205) 14,817 196,590
- - - . (295} 285 -
13,739,628 {632,766) 169,348 20,385 332,827 {2,914,339) 10,706,083
Pohaie’
}
~
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Note
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss hefore taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adpustments:
Depreciation
Amortization
Depreciation - non banking assets
Provision and write-offs 29
Write off of financing provision
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets
Unrealized loss on revaluation of investments classified as held for trading

{Increase)/ Decrease in operating assets

{ e from financial institutions
Held-for-trading securities - net
Istamic financing and related assets - net
Others assets (excluding advance taxation)

Increase/ (Decrease} in operating liabilities
Bilts payable
Due to financial institutions
Deposits
Other liabilities -

Income tax paid
~ Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net (investments) / redemptions in available-for-sale securities
Dividends received

Investments in operating fixed assets

I ~eeds from sale of fixed assets

ﬁm cash {used in) / flow from investing activities

CASH FL.LOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt of Additional Tier | Capital

Repayment of Tier Il mudaraba sukuk - first issue
Issuance of Tier I! mudaraba sukuk - second issue
Net cash flow from financing activities

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 32
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32

2018 2017
---- {Rupees in '00Q) ---~
(245,012) (531,073)
(36,269) (44,469)
(281,281) (575,542)
192,471 227,591
186,309 200,363
25,667 25,668
770,029 185,354
(28) -
(758) (57,6511)
23,174 6,008
1,196,864 587,563
915,583 12,021
5,095,411 (2,402,708)
(105,268) (33,135)
(4,279,729)| | (4,402,081)
(1,795,453) (342,127)
(1,085,039)  {7,180,051)
39,357 (251,295)
626,622 (13,708)
3,292,086 || (6,697,134)
1,156,194 315,473
5,114,259  (6,646,665)
(77,319) (53,939)
4,867,484  (13,868,634)
(1,884,860} | 4,781,677
38,492 44,511
(196,831) (108,287)
13,410 74,724
(2,029,789) 4,792,625
1,389,241 -
(285,716) (285,716)
- 1,500,000
1,103,525 1,214,284
3,941,220  (7,861,725)
11,847,750 19,709,475
15,788,970 11,847,750
T

The anneféed notes 1 to 48 and annexures | and |l form an integral part of these financial statements.
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< ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECENMBER 2018

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on 20 December 2004 as a public limited company. The
Bank was granted an Islamic Banking License BL{1)-01(07), issued by the Banking Policy and Regulations Department of the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) on 18 January 2007. Subsequently, the Bank was also granted approval for commencement of business as
a scheduled bank with effect from 13 February 2007. Upen merger of the Pakistan branches of AlRaraka Islamic Bank B.S.C. {c) with
and into the Bank, fresh license no. BL(1}-01(2011) was issued by SBP on 12 Maich 2011, effeclive from close of business on 29
Octaber 2010. The main objeclive of the Bank is to carry on Islamic banking business in Pakistan in accordance and in conformity
with Shariah,

The Bank is a subsidiary of AiBaraka 1slamic Bank B.S.C. (c} {parent bank} incorporated and domiciled in Bahrain and a member of
AlBaraka Banking Group. :

1.2 During the year 2016, the shareholders of the Bank in their exira ordinary general meeling hefd on 22 August 2018 have approved
the merger of the Bank with Burj Bank Limited under a "Scheme of Amalgamation” (the Scheme). Further, State Bank of Pakislan,
through its felter no. BPRD (R&P-02)/2016/24373 dated 14 October 20186, has also approved the scheme of amaigamation and
granled sanclion order for the amalgamation of Ex Burj Bank Limited with and into the Bank. As of the effective date of
amalgamation, the entire undertaking of Ex Burj Bank Limited including all the properties, assets and liabilities and all the rights and
obligations shail, withoul any further act, action or deed and nolwithstanding the terms of any conltract or other document or any rule
: of law, stands amalgamated with and vest in the Bank and as a conseglience, Ex Burj Bank Limited stands amalgamated with and
into the Bank.

The Bank's regislered office is located at 162, Bangalore Town, Main Sllarah;e~Faisal, Karachi. The Bank has 191 branches
inctuding 11 sub-branches (31 December 2017: 188 branches including 13 sub-branches) in Pakistan.

1.3 Based on the financial stalements of the Bank for the year ended 31 Dacember 2017, JCR-VIS has maintained the fong-term rating
at 'A+' and short-term rating at *At'. Pakistan Credit Raling Agency Limited (PACRA) has maintainaed the Bank's long-term rating at
‘A" and short term rating at 'A1".

1.4 As at 31 December 2018, the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) and Capital Adequacy Ratio {CAR) stood al Rs.10.19 billion and
11.77 % respectively.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the SBP vide BSD
Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 2018,

The Bank provides Islamic financing mainly through shariah compliant financial products as explained in Note 4.5.1 except for

Murabaha transactions (which are accounted for under the Islamic Financial Accounting Standard - 1), the purchases and sales

arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these financial statements as such but are reslricted to the amount of facilily

actually utilized and the appropriale portion of rentat / profit thereon. tncome, if any received, which does not comply with the
" principles of Shariah is recognised as charity payable.

21 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the ascounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporling standards comprise of;:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issted by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Charlerad Accountants of Pakistan as are notified
under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan {SECP).
Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the

SBPand the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives, shall prevail, f;‘""l



7 ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

#21.2 Adoption of new forms for the preparation of financial statements

21.3

During the year, the SBP, vide its BPRD Circular No. 02 dated 25 January 2018, issued the revised forms for the preparation of the
annual financial statements of the banks which are applicable for annuat pericds beginning on or after 0t January 2018. The
implementation of the revised forms has resulted in certain changes to the accounting policies of the Bank and the presentafion and
disclosures of various efements of the financial statements. These changes are summarized befow:

2.1.2.4 Changes in the accounting polices

As per the revised forms, "Surplus / deficit on revaluation of assets” is now required o be presented as a component of the
equily of the Bank. Previously, such surplus / deficit was required to be presenled separately from the equity of the Bank
and changes in such surplus / deficit were not recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Consequent upon the
change in the presentation requirements, the surplus / deficit on revaluation of Assets and changes in such surplus / deficit
during the year are reflected in the relevant section of the statement of financiat position, staternent of comprehensive
income and statement of changes in equily for the current and prior years presenied in these financial statements.

Acceplances represeniing undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers are now required to be
recognised as liabilities of the Bank at the date of acceptance. Previously, acceplances were only recegnised as off-balance
sheet obligations and disclosed under contingent liabilities. As a result of the above change, the other assets and other
liabilities of the Bank Increased by Rs.3,737 million, Rs.1,992 million and Rs.1,913 million as of 2018, 2017 and 2016
respectively,

2.1.2.2 Significant changes to the presentation and disclosures

In additien, to above changes in accounting policies, certain changes to the presentation of the financial statements have
been made such as other reversal of provisions / write offs have now been combined under provisions and write off - net
(Mole 29) and Business segmenis have been identified and reported as per the requirements of IFRS 8 - "Operating
Segments" (Note 38.1).

Further, certain, new disclosure have been introduced which include calegory of classification for non-performing
“Inveslments” (Note 8.3.2); movement in "Non-Banking Assels acquired in satisfaction of Claims” {MNote 13.1.2); for "Non-
Banking Assels acquired in satisfaction of Claims" sofd during the year, disposal proceeds, cost of such asset,
impairment/depreciation and realized gains or losses {Note 13.1.3); composition of deposits {Note 16.1); breakdown of fFee
and Commission (Note 24); presentation of operating expenses has been changed (Nole 27), Concentration of Islamic
financings and province wise dishursements and ulitizalion of Islamic financings (Note 43.1.5 and note 43,1.6); and assets
split between {rading and banking books (Note 43.2.1).

The Bank has adopted the above changss in the presentation and made additional disclosure to the extent applicable to its
operations and corresponding figures have been rearranged / reclassified to correspond to current year's presentation, Such
reclassifications / re-arrangements are disclosed in notes no. 47 to the financial statements.

The SBP, vide its BPRD Circwlar No. 01 dated 25 January 2017 issued “Guidelines and Disclosures on Governance and
Remuneration Praclices”. Certain disclosure related to remuneration of Directors and management of the Bank were required to be
presented in the financial statements in terms of such guidelines. Accordingly, revised format of the financial statement issued by the
SBP incorporates such disclosure requirements, However, SBP through its circular number BPRD/R&PD/2018/17232 dated 08
August 2018 deferred the reporting of such disclosures il 31 December 2019. Therefors, the management has reported the
remuneration disclosures in these financial statement in accordance with previous disclosure requirements of the SBP {Note 36).

The SBP vide BSD Circular Letter No, 10 dated 26 August 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard
39, "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" (IAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40, "Investment Properiy”
{1AS 40} for banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of SECP dated 28 April 2008, the IFRS -
7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards
have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statemants. However, invesiments have been classified and valued in
accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

The SBP, through ils BSD Circular No. 10 dated 26 August 2002, has deferred the implementation of International Accounting
Standard (JAS) 39 - "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremant” and IAS 40 - "Investment Property" for Banking
Companies in Pakistan, il further instructions. Accordingly, the requirements of these Standards have not been considered in the
preparation of these financial statements. Further, the SECP has deferred the applicability of International Financial Reporting
Standard (IFRS) 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures" through its S.R.0. 411(1)/2008 dated 28 April 2008. Accordingly, the
requirements of this standard have also not been considered in the preparation of these financiat statements. However, invesiments
and non-banking assets have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various
circulars.

The SBP vide ils BPRD Circular No. 04 dated 25 February 2015 has clarified that the reporting requirements of IFAS-3 for Islamic
Banking Inslitutions (IBls) relaling to annual, half yearly and quarterly financial statements would be notified by SBP through
issuance of specific instructions and uniform disclosure formats in consultation with 1Bls. These reporting requirernents have not
been ratified o date. Accordingly, the disclosures requirements under IFAS 3 have not been considered in tgag:gt financial statements.

‘a
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8 ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effactive in the current

The Bank has adopted the following amendments to accounting standards and improvements fo IFRSs which became effective for
the current year:

Standard or Interprefation

-1FRS 2 - Share-based Payments — Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments)
- IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — {Amendmenis)

- IFRIC Interpretation 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB in December 2016

- 1AS 28 - Invesiments in Associates and Joint Veniures: Clarification that measuring investees at fair value through profit or loss is
an invesiment-by-investment choice

The adeption of the above amendments, improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the
financial statements,

Staiidards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yetf effective.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan would be effeclive fram the dates mentioned below against the respeclive standard or interpretation:

Effactive date (annual periods

Standard, interpretation or amendment ‘ heginning on or after)
- IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business (Amendments) January 01, 2020
-IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classificalion and Measurement July 01, 2018

- FRS 9 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation - {Amendments) January 01, 2019

- IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Stalements and 1AS 28 Investment in Associates Not yet finalized

and Joint Ventures - Sale or Coniribution of Assels between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture {Amendment)

- IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers July 01, 2018

- IFRS 16 - Leases January 01, 2019
-1FRIC 23 - Uncertainly over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019
- IAS 1/1AS 8 - Definition of Material (Amendments) January 01, 2020
- 1AS 18 - Plan Amendment, Curlailment or Seitlerent {Amendments) January 01, 2019
- IAS 28 - Longﬂerm Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures {Amendments) January 01, 2019

The above slandards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the Bank's financial
statements in the period of initial application, other than IFRS 9 and IFRS 16. With regard to [FRS 8, the Bank considers that as the
Prudential Reguiations and other SBP directives currently provide the accounling framework for the measurement and valuation of
investments and provision against non performing financing, the implementation of IFRS 9 may require changes in the regulatory
regime, Therefere, the Bank expects that the SBP would issue suitable guidance and instruction on the application of IFRS 9 for the
banking sector of Pakistan. With regard to IFRS 16, lhe Bank is currently evaluating the impact of application of IFRS 16 on ifs
financial statements.

In addition 1o the above slandards and amendments, improvernents to various accounting slandards have also been Issued by the
IASB in December 2017. Such improvemenls are generally effective for acgounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
The Bank expecis {hat such improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the Bank's financial statements in the period
of initiaf application.

Fuether, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability
in Pakistan. E

Standards

- IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts

- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts
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Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Bank's accounting policies. The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions used in the preparation of the financial
statements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future svents that are believed o be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision fo the accounting estimates are
recognised in {he period in which the estimale is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and fulure periods. The key areas of estimates and judgements in refation to these
financial statements are as follows:

a) Provision against non-performing Islamic financing

The Bank reviews s financing portfolic to assess amount of non-performing Islamic financing and determine provision
required there against on a quarterly basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the past dues,
delinquency in the account, financial position of the borrower, value of collateral held and requirements of Prudential
Regulations are considered except where relaxation has been alfowed by SBP.

The amount of general provision against consumer, small and medium enterprises and Islamic financing is determined in
accordance with the relevant Prudential Regulations and SBP directives,

b)  lmpairiment of available for sale investments

he Bank considers that available for sale equily investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost except for investments where relaxation has been allowed by SBP. This determination
of what is significant or prefonged requires judgement, in addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial heallh of the investee, indusiry and sector perfarmance.

c) Income taxes

In making the estimates for current and deferred taxes, the management looks at the income tax law and the decisions of
appellate autherifies on certain issttes in the past. There are certain matters where the Bank's view differs with the view
taken by the income tax depariment and such amounts have been disclosed as contingent liability.

d) Operating fixed assets, depreciation and amortization

tn making estimates of the depreciation / amortization method, the management uses method which reflects the patiern in
which economic benefils are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviewed at each financial year
end and if there is a change in the expected patlern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets,
the method would be changed to reflect the change in pattern.

e) Employees' benefit plans

The liabilities for employees' benefits are delermined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial vajuations involve
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets and future salary increases as disclosed in note 35.3.
Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject lo significant uncertainty,

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for available for sale investments, non-
banking assets and commitmenis in respect of foreign exchange forward contracts which have been measured at fair value in
accordance with requirements of SBP. In addition, obligation in respect of staff retirement benefits and employees compensated
leave balances are carried at present vatue as actuarial valuation,

ftems included in the financial statemenls are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank
operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial stalements are set out below. These policies have
been consistantly applied to all years presented,

Business combination and goodwill

Business combination are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of acquisition is measured as the fair value of
assefs given, equity instrumenis issued and the liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of acquisition. The consideration

transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangernent, if any. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and labilities and contingent liabitities assumed in a business

combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwilt. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit and loss account,

"
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A2  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks and balances with other banks in current and deposit
accounts.

4.3 Due to / from Financial Institutions
Bai Muajjal

In bai muajjal transactions, the Bank sells sukuk on credit fo other Financial Institutions. The credil price is agreed ai the time of sale
and such proceeds are received at the end of credit period.

Musharaka

In Musharaka, the Bank invests in the shariah compliant business pools of the financial institulions at the agreed profit and loss
sharing ratio.

Musharaka from State Bank of Pakistan under Islamic Export Refinance Scheme (IERS)

Under IERS, the Bank accepts funds from the SBP under shirkat-ul-aqd to constilute a pool for investment in export refinance
portiofio of the Bank under the guidelines issued by the SBP. The profit of the pool is shared as per the agreed weightages between

4.4 Investments
4.4.1 Investments are classified as follows:
(a) Held for trading

These are secusities, which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market prices, profit
{ rale movemenis or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattern of shori-term profit taking exists. Such securities
* are normally sold within 90 days of the purchase date.

{b} Held to maturity

These are securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Bank has the positive
intent and abitily to hold il maturity.

(c) Available for sale
These are investments, that do not fall under the 'held for trading' or 'held to malurity' calegories.
4.4,2 Regular way conlracts

All purchases and sales of investiments that require defivery within the time frame established by regutations or market convention
are recognised at the frade date. Trade date is the date on which the Bank commits fo purchase or selt the investmant.

4.4.3 Iinitial recognition and measurement

vestments other than those categorised as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs
associated with the investments. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the profit and loss account.

4.4.4 Subsequent measurement
( {a) Held for trading

These are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Galns and [osses on remeasurement are included in the
nei profit and loss for the year.

{b) Held to maturity

These are measured at amortized cost using the effective profit rate methed, less any impairment [oss recognised to reflect
irrecoverable amount.

(c) Available for sale

In accordance with the requirements of the SBP, quoted sacurities and Government securities other than those classified as
'held to maturity', are subsequently re-measured to market value. Surplus / deficit arising on revaluation of quoted securities
classified as 'available for sate', is taken to a separate account shown in the statement of financial position as a component
of equity.

Unguoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-up value of equity securilies is

calculated with refarence lo the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available financial statements. In cases

whare the break up value of such shares is less than the cost, the difference of the cost and break up value is provided for
L

(4}
-

accordingly by charging to the profit and loss account. i
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Impairment

Provision for diminution in the values of securilies classified as available for sale and held to maturity (except sukuk cerlificates) is
charged to profit and Joss account. Provision for diminution in value of sukuk certificates is made as per the requirements of the
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Cost of equity investments is determined on weighted average basis.

Islamic financing and related assets

Brief nature of Islamic financing arrangements

Following is a brief nature of the financing arrangements entered into by the Bank.

Murabaha

Under murabaha financing, funds disbursed for purchase of goods are recorded as ‘advance against murabaha finance’. On
culmination of murabaha i.e. sale of goods to customers, murabaha financing are recorded at the deferred sale price net of deferred
profit. Goeds purchased but remaining unsold at the statement of financial position date are recorded as inventories.

liara Financing
In ijara financing, the Bank provides the assels on periodic rentals for specific lenor to customers,

Istasna

In istasna financing, the Bank places an order to purchase some specific goods / commodities from its customers to be delivered to
the Bank within an agreed time. The goods are then sold by the customer on behalf of the Bank and the amount hence financed
atongwith profit is paid back to bank.

Tijarah
In tijarah financing, the Bank purchases specific goods / commodities on cash basis from Its customers for onward sale and on
subsequent sale, the financed amount is paid back by the customer.

Diminishing Musharaka

In diminishing musharaka based financing, the Bank enters into musharaka based on Shirkat-ul-Mulk for financing and agreed share
of fixed assels (example: house, land, plant, machinery or vehicle) with its customers and enters into period profit payment
agreement for the utilization of the Bank's musharaka share by the customer.

Service Ija'rah

In the service larah financing, the Bank provides financing by acquiring certain agreed services from the customer. After the
purchase of services, the Bank appoints the customer to sell these services in the market over a period and provide a sale
confirmation of such sale. :

Salam
Salam is a sale transaction where the seller undertakes to supply some specific goods to the buyer at a fulure date against an
advance price fully paid on spot.

Running Musharaka
Running musharaka is a shirkul-aqd based financing facility offered to the customers where the Bank pardlicipates in operating
activities of the customer and share profit and loss as per the actual performance of their business,

Accounting policies of Islamic financing

fslamic financing and related assels (advance, inventories etc.) are stated nel of specific and general provisions against non-
performing Istamic financing, if any, which are éharged to the profit and loss account.

Provigions against non-performing Islamic financing and related assets

Specific provision against non-perferming islamic financing is determined in accordance with the Prudential Regulations and other
directives issued by the SBP. The Bank maintains general reserve {provision), unless speclfic exemplion is available from SBP in
accordance with the applicable requirements of Prudential Regulations for consumer finance and small and medium enterprise
financing.

ljarah Assels

ijarab financing booked Is accounted for as per the requirements of IFAS 2, whereby assels leased out under jjarah are depreciated
over the term of ijarah and the refated rental income is recognised in the profit and foss account on an accrual basis.

ljarah financing bocked before 01 January 2009 is accounted for as a finance lease whereby assefs under fjarah arrangements are
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to net investment in ijarah. Unearned income i.e. excess of aggregale rentals over the
cost of the asset is recorded at the inception of the fjarah and is amortized over the term of the ijarah so as to produce a constani
rate of return on net invastment in ijarah.

istamic financing and related assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
Inventories

Goaods purchased but remaining unsofd at the statement of financial position date are recorded as inventories. The Bank values its
inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories represents the actual purchase price paid by the

customer as an agent on behalf of the Bank from the funds disbursed for the purpose of culmination of murabaha.
#ra
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¥ The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the astimated cost necessary to make
the sale,

- 4.6 Fixed Assets

4,6,1 Property and Equipment

Properly and equipment, other than land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Land is stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged using the straight-line method in accordance with the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial
slatements and after taking into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and deprecialion methods are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each statement of financial position date. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Gains / losses on sale of fixed assets are credited / charged fo the profit and loss account and disclosed in other income.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount and recognised as a separate assel as appropriate, only when it is
probable that fulure benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged fo profit and loss account as and when incurred.

4.6.2 Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated al cost less accumulated impairment fosses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific assets
inctrred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred 1o specific
assels as and when assets become available for use,

,(1 “  infangible assets

intangible assels having a finite useful life are stated af cost less accumulated amortization and accumutated impairment losses, i
any. Inlangible assets are amorttized from the month, when these assels are available for use, using the sfraight line methed,
whereby the cost of the inlangible asset is amortized on the basis of the estimated useful life over which economic benefits are
expected to flow fo the Bank. The residual value, useful life and amortization method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
aach statement of financial position date. Amortization rates are specified in note 11,1 1o these financial statements.

Infangible assets with indefinite usefid lives are not amorlized but tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
genesating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whelher the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. if not, the change in useful fife from indefinite o finite is made on a prospective basis.

471 Impairment

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed al each reporling date for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverabte. If such indication exists, and where the carrying valua
exceeds the estimaled recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. The resulting impairment foss Is
taken to the profit and loss account.

4.8 Non-Banking Assets

The non-banking assets acquired in salisfaction of claims are carried at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. These

assets are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that thelr net carrying value does not differ

materially from their fair value, A surplus arising on revajuation of property is crediled to the 'Surplus on revaluation of asseis’

account and any deficit arising on revaluation is taken to profit and loss account directly. Legal feas, transfer cost and direct cost of
£ acquiring title lo property is charged to profit and loss account and not capitalised.

Depreciation is determined with reference to the value assigned to such assels on revaluation and depreciation charge for the
year/period is taken to the profit and loss account.

An amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred taxation is transferred from "Surplus on revaluation of asset
account” to accumulated losses through stalement of changes in equity to record realisalion of surplus to the extent of the
incremental depreciation charge for the year,

4.9  Deposits

Deposils are generated on the basis of two modes i.e. Qard and Mudaraba. Deposits taken on Qard basis are classified as "Current
Accounts' and Deposits generated on Mudaraba basis are classified as 'Savings Account' and 'Fixed Deposit Accounts'.

No profit or loss is passed on to current account depositors. However, the funds of current accounts are trealed as equily for the
purpose of profit catculation and only any profit earned / loss incurred on these funds are allocated to the equity of the Bank. Profits
realized in pool are distributed in pre-agreed profit sharing ratio. Rab-ui-Maal share is distributed among depositors accaording fo
weightages assigned at the inception of profit calculation period,

Mudarib {the Bank} can distribute its share of profit to Rab-ul-Maal in line with Shariah quidelines issued by SBP,
410 Sub-ordinated Loans

A subordinated loan is initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Profit accrued on subordinated loans is charged to the
profit and loss account. £
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4.14

Revenue Recognition

- Profit on murabaha transactions is recognised on accrual basis. Profit on Murabaha transactions for the period from the date
of disbursement to the date of culmination of murabaha is recognised immediately upon the latter date.

- Rental income on ijarah financing booked is recognised on accrual basis,
- Profit on diminishing musharaka, running musharaka, mudarabz and service ijarah are recognised on accrual basis.

- Profit on tijarah and istisna is recognised on accrual basis commencing frem the lime of sale of goods till the realization of
sale proceeds by the Bank.

- Profit bn bai muajjal transactions are recognised on accrual basis.
- Commission on lelters of credit, acceptances and letters of guarantee is recognised on receipt basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

- Profit from investment in sukuk is recegnised on accrual basis. Premium and discount on purchase of sukuk are being
amortized through profit and loss account over the remaining maturity.

- Gains / losses on disposal of fixed assets, ijarah assets and musharaka assets are taken to profit and loss account in the
period in which they arise.

- Gains / losses on sale of investmenls is included in profit and loss account,

- tncome earned from avenues that are not Shariah compliant is not recognised in the profit and loss account. This income is
classified as charily payable in accordance with the recommendation of the Shariah Advisor of the Bank.

- Realization of profit earlier suspended in compliance with the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP is credited to profit and
loss accoun! on receipt basis, i

Taxation

Income {ax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Expense is recognised in profit and loss account except to the extent when
it refates to items recognised directly in equity or below equity.

{a) Current

The charge for current {axation is based on expected {axable income for the year at the current rate of transaction. The Bank
assessed its taxation income under Section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

(b) Defarred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability methad on all major temperary differences between the amounts
altributed lo assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition, the Bank also
records deferred tax asset on available tax losses. Deferred tax is calcalated at the rates that are expacled to apply to the period
when the differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted at the statement of financial position date,

A deferred tax asset is recognised only o the extent that it is prebable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
assel can be ulilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each statement of financiat position date and reduced o the extent that it is

" no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Bank also recagnises a deferred tax asset / liability on the deficit / surplus on revaluation of assets which is adjusted against the
related surplus / deficit in accordance with the requirements of the International Accounting Standard {IAS) 12, 'Income Taxes’.

Staff Retirement Benefits
(#) Defined benefit plan

The Bank operates funded gratuily scheme for all its permanent employees. The benefits under the gratuily scheme are payable on
refirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum. The benefit is equtal to one month's tast drawn basic satary
for each completed year of service, subject to a minimum of three years of service.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Bank also operates a recognised contributory provident fund for all permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are
made, both by {he Bank and the empiloyees, to the fund at a rate of 10 percent of basic salary.

Provisions, Contingent Assets And Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a resulf of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embedying econemic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed al each statement of financial position date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. . £

v
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o Contingent assels are nol recognised unless inflow of economic benefits is vidually certain.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed unless the probability of an outfiow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote.

4.16  Provision For Guarantee Claims And Other Off-Balance Sheet Obligations

The Bank, in the ordinary course of business, issues letters of credit, acceptances, guarantees, bid bonds, performance bonds etc.
The commission against such c¢ontracts is recagnised in the profit and less account under "fee and commission income” on receipt
basis. The Bank's fiability under such conlracts is measured at ihe best eslimate of the amount expected to settle any financial
obligation arising under such contracts.

4,16 Foreign CGurrency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are transfated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the dale of transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencles are translated into Pak rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Exchange gains or losses are included in the profit and loss account of the current period.

4,17 GCommitments

Commilments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are translated at forward rales applicable to their respective
maturities. Centingent liabilities / commilments for letlers of credit and letters of guarantes denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates ruling on the reporting date.

4.18 Acceptances

Acceplances representing underiakings by the Bank {o pay bills of exchange drawn on customers are recognised as liabllities of the
. Bank at the date of acceptance. Previously, acceptances were only recognised as off-batance sheet obligations and disclosed under
(_ conlingent Habilities.

4.19  Financial Instruments
{a) Financial assets and financial Hlabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initfally recognised al the time when the Bank becomes a parly fo the contractuat
provisions of the instrument, These include regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that requires delivery of assets within
the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Financial assels are de-recognised when the
contractual right to fulure cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and rewards of ownership of the
assetl. Financlal liabilities are de-recognised when obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or
loss on de-recegnition of the financial assets and liabilities is recognised In the profit and loss account of the current geried.

{b) Off-setting

Financiat assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legatly
erfotceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a nel basis, or {o realise the asset and setile
the liability simultaneously.

4,20 Earnings Rer Share

The Bank presents basic and diluled earnings per share (EPS}) and basic and diluted loss per share for its shareholders. Basic EPS /

loss per share is calcufated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average

nurnber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluled £PS f loss per share is determined by adjusling the profit or loss
[ attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of erdinary shares outstanding for the effects of all
‘ dilulive potential ordinary shares, if any.

4,21 Pool Management

The Bank operates general and specific pools for depositors,

Under the general deposits pool, the Bank accepls funds on Mudaraba basis from depositors (Rab-ul-Maal) where the Bank acts as
Manager {Mudarib) and invests the funds in the Sharizh Compliant modes of Isfamic financings and related assets, investments and
pfacements.

Specilic pools are operated for funds acguired / accepted from Slate Bank of Pakistan for Islamic Export Refinance under the
Musharaka mode.

The profit of each deposit pool is calcutated on alt the remunerative assels by utilizing the funds from the pool after deduction of
expenses direclly incurred in earning the income of such pool, if any. No provisions against any non performing assets of the pool is
passed on to the pool. The profit of the pool is shared among the members of the pool on pre-defined mechanism based on the
weightages announced before the profit calculation pericd.

The deposits and funds under the above mentioned pools are provided to diversified sectors and avenues of the economy / business
and are also invested in Government of Pakistan backed ijjarah sukuk and other soverelgn securities, Musharaka investments from

State Bank of Pakistan under Islamic Exporl Refinance are channalled towards the export sector of the economy.
iy,
T
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7.1

£

2018 2017
Note  -—-- (Rupees in '000) -~
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Local currency 2,590,755 2,217,811
Foreign currencies 533,505 524 591
3,124,260 2,742,402
With Stale Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account 5.1 9,630,719 5,076,417
Foreign currency current account 5.1 7,442 8,405
Foreign currency deposit account 5.1 972,084 722,169
. 10,610,245 5,806,991
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account 1,200,287 366,185
l.ocal currency deposit account 7 7
1,200,294 366,192
14,934,799 8,915,685

These include local and foreign currency amount required to be maintained by the Bank with SBP.

These accounts are non-remunerative in nature.

2018 2017
Note  ----- (Rupees in '000) -----
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan '
In current account 2,566 1,431
In deposit account 6.1 19,048 1,942,672
21,614 1,944,103
Outside Pakistan
In current account 721,699 885,914
In deposit account 110,858 102,148
832,557 088,062
854,171 2,832,165

The expected return on these deposits ranges from 3.50% to 9% {31 December 2017: 2.50% to

5.74%) per annum.

2017

2018
Note  -«--- (Rupees in '000} -----
DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Bai Muajjal receivable
- from State Bank of Pakistan 7.1 - 5,095,411
2018 2017

Particulars of due from financial institution

In local currency
In foreign currencies

----- {(Rupees in '000) -----

5,095,411

5,095,411

Sarf L
L
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INVESTMENTS
2018 2017 |
Cos'l! Provision Surplus/  Careying Cost/ Provision Surplus / Carrylng
Amortized for (Deficit)y ~ Valye ~ Amontized . for {Deficit) Value
cost diminution cost dimlnution
Ly T S — [RUPEES 11 "DODY serrimmemmmmres o e e e e e
Investments by lype
Held-for-trading securities
Shares 132,305 {23,174) 109,131 33,135 - (6,098} 27,037
Available-for-sale securitfes
Federal Government securities 8.2&8.4.1 | 16,732,260 - 249,944 | 16,982,204 15,846,397 - 24001 15,848,707
Shares 8428843 1,453,804 {462,395} (129,794) 861,315 1,324,785} (161,683) {229,404} 933,698
Non Government dab! securities 8.2 1,227,505 {111,455) 2,321 1,118,371 767437 [ (117,087} - 850,350
Foreign securities 8.2 2,365,414 - {91,110)} 2,274,304 1,885,786 - (21,920} 1,863,876
Units of open-end muiual funds . - - . 69,408 - 320 69,728
21,778,683 {573,850) 31,361 21,238,194 19,893,823  (278,770) (248,604} 19,366,449
Total Investments 21,910,988 {573,850) 8,187 21,345,325 19,826,956  (278,770) {254,702} 19,393,486
2018 2017
Cost/ Provisian Cost/ Provision
Amortized for Stg’e';;;'ii)’ Cﬂg&:“ Amortizad for ":;L‘::si‘f)’ Cifa"'ki:g
cost diminution cost diminution
Hole s (RUPEES TN D00} +ooreeeemmmm et e
Investments by segments
Fedoral Govornmant Securities: .
ljarah Sukuk 8,114,508 {62,129)] 8,062,379 10,298,102 - 24001 10,301,502
Bal Muajjal 2,677,635 - - 2,677,636 - - - -
Clher Sukuks 6,040,117 - 312,073 6,352,190 5,547 205 - - 5,647,295
841 16,732,280 249,944 16,982,204 15,846,387 - 2400 15,048,797
Shares;
Listed companies l 1,529,587 l {439,782} (152,958} 936,837 1,305,720 |  {142,046) (235,502) 928,172
Unlisted companies 8.4.3 56,222 {22,613} - 33,609 52,200 (19,637 - 32,563
1,685,809 (462,395) (152,968) 970,446 1,357,920 (181,683 {235,502) 860,735
Nan Goverrnment Debt Securitles
Unlisted 8.4.4 1,227,505 {111,455} 2,321 1,418,371 767,437 {117,087) - 650,350
Forelgh Securities
Governmanl securities 8.4.5.1 417,385 - {42,039} 376,348 332,004 - (640} 331,364
Non Government Debl securities 8.4.5,2 1,048,029 - (49,071)F 1,898,958 1,553,792 - (21,280)] 1,532,512
2,365,414 - 91,410y 2,274,304 1,885,796 - {21,920y 1,863,876
Units of epen-end mutual funds ’ - - - - 69,408 - 320 69,728
Total Investmenls 21,910,988 {573,850) 8,187 21,345,325 19,926 958  (278,770) (254,702) 19,393,406
2018 2017
----- {Rupecs in '000) -----
Provislon for diminution In value of investments
Openlng balance 278,770 164,728
Charge ! reversals
Charge for the year 308,383 116,449
Reversals for tha year (5,632) (2,407)
Reversal on disposals {7,671) -
295,080 114,042
Closing Balance 573,850 278,770
2018 2017
Non- Non-
performing performing
Investment Provislon lavestment  Provision

Particulars of provislon against debt securities
Category of classification

Domestic

Olher assets especially mentioned
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

..... {Rupees In '600) --..-

111,458

(141,455)

117,087

-+ {Rupges In '000) -----

(117,087

111,455

{111,455)

117,087

{117,087

£
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Details regarding quality of Available for Sale (AFS) securilies are as follows:

Federal Government Securities

- Government guaranteed
liarah Sukuk
Bai Muaijal
Others

- Non-government guaranteed
Others

Shares - at cost

Listed Companies

Chemicals and pharmaceutical
Ferlilizer

Cement

Textile .

Power generation and distribution
Oit and gas

-ood producers

Paper and board

Automoblle assembler
Engineering

Cable and electrical goods
Miscellaneous

Unlisted Companies

Takaful Pakistan Limited*
SWIFT

The break-up value of Takaful Pakistan Limited is Rs.6.16
statements for the period ended 30 June 2018 and Rs. 5.8

31 December 2017.

Non Government Debt Securities

Unlisted
- A
-A
- Non-performing

Foreign Securities
Government Securities
- Oman
Non Government Debt Securities
Listed

- Ak
-A

2018 2017
Cost
----- {(Rupees in '000) -----

8,114,508 10,299,102
2,577,835 -

5,540,117 4,547,295

16,232,260 14,846,397

500,000 1,000,060

16,732,260 15,846,387

121,654 117,306

92,161 107,086

307,418 261,891

22,858 22,857

109,803 101,774

410,573 338,665

41,961 41,961

113,169 106,366

62,712 74,651

69,315 46,463

32,462 40,368

13,200 13,200

1,397,282 1,272,585

2018 2017
Cost Break-up value Cost Break-up value
---------------------------- (Rupees in "000}) —wxeemneemmee e
52,200 29,587 52,200 32,563
4,022 4,022 - -

56,222 33,609 52,200 32,5663

{un-audited) per share as per the available financial
per share as per the financial statements for the year ended

2018 2017
Cost
----- (Rupees in '000) -----

432,000 -
684,050 660,350
111,455 117,087
1,227,505 767 437
2018 2017
Cost Rating Cost Rating
---------------------------- (Rupees in "000) --—rormccee e
417,385 BB+ 332,004 BBB-
2018 2017
Cost
----- (Rupees in '000) -----
698,340 556,658
1,249,689 997,134
1,948,029 1,553,792

fpten
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9.1.4

8.1.2

9.2

9.2.1

9.2.2

9.3

ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS

- Murabaha financing
- Advance against murabaha financing
- Expord refinance under Islamic scheme
- Advance againsl exporl refinance under Islamic scheme
- ljarah assels
- Diminlshing musharaka financing
- Advance agalnsi diminishing musharaka finance
- Running musharaka
- Hjarah finance
- Over due acceplances
- Payment againsi guarantee
- Payment against documents
- Salam financing
- Advance against satam
- Salam inventory
- Finansing agalnsi bills
- Islasna finance
- Advance againsl istasna
- [stasna inventory
- Qarz-e-Hasna
- Rahnuma travel services
Islamls financing and related assels - gross

Provistons for non-percrning inancing
- Specilic
- Genaral

Istamnlc firancing and related assels - nel of provisions

Murabaha receivable - gross
l.ess: Deferred murabaha income

Profit receivaile shown i olher assels
turabaha financing
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The movement in Murabaha financing during the year is as follows:

Cpenlng balance

Sales during the yaar
Adjusted during the year
Closing balance

Murabaha sale price
Murabaha purchase price

Deferred murabsha income
Opening batance

Arising during the year

Less: Recognised during Lhe year
Clesing balance

ljarah assets

- lJarah assels under IFAS 2
- Nelinvestment in ijarah
- Advance against fjarzh

Plant and machinery
Vehicies
Total

Plant and machinesy
Vehicles
Tolal

Paerforming Non Performing Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2048 2017
Note " {Rupees in '000}
9.1 7,287,788 6,835,562 2,604,584 2,768,071 9,892,372 9,603,633
1,021,163 1,928,214 204,339 173,337 1,225,502 2,101,551
1,225,930 1,859,771 87,505 87,505 1,313,435 1,947,276
2,595,009 1,772,129 - - 2,595,099 1,772,129
9.2 1,006,762 2,106,598 666,162 672,412 1,662,924 2,778,010
36,497,979 36,223,574 972,148 1,180,671 37,470,927 37,404,245
966,020 998,187 . - 956,020 808,187
650,000 150,000 . - 650,000 150,000
2,212,584 | 1,378,591 - - 2,212,594 1,378,591
391,189 196,045 482,763 502877 873,952 698,722
15,081 15,081 47,715 47,715 62,796 62,796
37,250 4,701 - - 37,210 4,701
- - - 22,087 - 22,087
9,258,028 7.537,874 1,194,456 1,430,187 10,452,484 8,968,061
25 8,160 - - 25 8,160
599,487 556,097 13,735 13,738 613,222 569,832
495,334 815,859 408,691 419,454 804,022 1,235,413
7,808,331 5,379,989 348,460 333,420 8,156,791 5,713,369
§16,004 30,860 - - 816,004 30,800
67,371 43,625 . - 87,371 43,625
. - 48 81 48 81
72,751,392 67.840,837 7,020,606 7,651,332 79,771,998 75,492 269
9.5 [ . I - H (4,614,044)' {4,202,127) [4,614,044) (4,202,127)
4.5 {145,978} {87,088) - - {145,978) (87,086)
(145,978} (87,088) {4,614,044) {4,202,127) {4,760,022) (4,289,213)
72,605,414 " 5/,753,851 2,406,562 3,449,205 75,011,976 71,203,056
. 2018 2017
Nate  oeeeer {Rupees In *¢00) «-mmrmmv
10,546,248 10,142,414
{447,525} {388,087)
{206,351) {156,894)
9,892,372 9,603,633
9,603,633 13,814,162
21,185,237 21,856,380
120,896,498} (26,063,909)
5,892,372 9,603,633
10,546,248 10,149,414
19,892,372) {9,603,633)
653,876 545,761
388,987 534,246
782,842 537,675
{724,204} (722,424)
447,625 age, 88y
1,550,431 2,646,543
9.2.2 112,493 112,493
- 18,974
1,662,924 2,179,010
2018
Cost Depreclation
As atJan  Additions/  As atDec As at Jan 01 Chargel/ reversal As atDec 31, Book Value as
012018 (detetlons) 31, 2018 2018 for the yoar 2018 at 31 Doc 2018
R, {Rupeges In '000) SR [ S
1,624,639 {404,102} 1,220,537 1,082,327 {249,064 833,263 387,274
3,882,188 (1,254,691} 2627497 1,645,490 (283,646) 1,351,847 1,276,650
5,506,827 {1,6568,793) 3,848,034 2,727,817 (542,710) 2,186,110 1,662,924
2017
Cosl Dapreciation
As atJan Additions  As alDec As atJan 01 Chargolreversal AsatDoc 31, Book Value as
012017  {deletions} 31, 2017 2017 for the year 2017 at 31 Dec 2017
[TTTERR-. {Rupees In T000) - e
. 2,477,160 (562,521) 1,624,639 1,292,728 {210,401) 1,082,327 542,312
5782134 (1,899,9486) 3,882,188 2,063,185 {417.695) 1,645,480 2,236,698
7,969,294 (2,452,467) 5506,827 3,355,913 3,231,812 2,727,817 2,779,010

Those represents the ljarah financing contracts enlered up to December 2008, These are accounted for as finance lease whare by assels under ifarah
presented as a recoivable at an amount equal to nel Invastment ia ijarah.

Prasent values of minimum fjarah payments:
- Not later than one year

Particutars of Islamic Hrancing and related assols {Gross)
Inlocal currancy
In foreign currencies

agreaments are

2018 2017
-------- {Rupees In '000} --------
112,493 112,493
112,493 112,453
79,123,864 74,338,139
645,134 1,354,330
79,771,998 75,492,269

£5
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Islamic financing and related assets include Rs.7,020.606 million (31 December 2016: Rs, 7,861,332 million) which have been
placed under non-performing status as detailed below:

Category of Classification

Domestic

Other assets especially mentioned
Substandard

Doubtfud

Loss

Particulars of provisions against non-performing Islamic financing and related assets

Opening balance

Charge for the year
Reversals for lhe year

Amounts wrilten off against provision
Amounts charged off / reversed -
agriculture financing

Closing balance

Note

9.6

2018 2047
Classified Islamic Classified islamic
financing and related  Provision financing and related Provision
assefs assets
----------------------------------- {Rupees in '000) -
70,337 - 35,182 -
895,165 77,599 1,434,832 133,894
546,398 178,639 653,068 127,265
5,508,716 4,357,806 5,628,250 3,940,968
7,020,606 4,614,044 7,651,332 4,202,127
2018 2017
Specific  General Total Specific General Total
--------------- {Rupees in '000) ---
4,202,127 87,086 4,289,213 4,217,953 86,969 4,304,622
813,543 | 58,892 872,436 458,907 117 459,024
{401,640) - (401,640)}H{  (474,945) - (474,945)
412,003 58,892 470,895 (16,038) 117 (15,921)
(28) . (28) - - -
{58} . (58) 212 - 212
4,614,044 145,978 4,760,022 4202127 87,086 4288213

The above provision against non-performing Estamic financing has been computed after considering allowable forced sale value
(FSV) of collaterat amounting to Rs. 1,886,235 (31 December 2017; Rs, 2,597.403) million. The FSV benefit recognised is not
allowed for distribution of cash or stock dividend te shareholders and bonus to employees,

9.5.2 The Bank maintains general reserve {provisions} in accordance with the applicable requirements of Prudential Regulalions for

consumer finangcing.

9.5.3 Particulars of provisions against non-performing Istamic financing and related assets

2.6

9.7

10,

10.1

In local currency
tn foreign currency

PARTICULARS OF WRITE OFFs:

9.6.1 Against provisions

2018 2017
Specifie  General Total Specific General Total
--------- (Rupees in '000) -=--rsexe
4,600,449 145,978 4,746,427 4,188,532 87,086 4,275,618
13,5956 - 13,685 13,595 - 13,595
4,614,044 145,978 4,760,022 4,202,127 87,086 4,289,213
2018 2017

DETAILS OF LOAN WRITE OFF OF Rs. 500,000/- AND ABOVE

..... {Rupees in "000) -----

28

In terms of sub-seclion (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 the Staternent in respect of written-off
loans or any other financlal refief of rupees five hundred thousand or above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended is

given In Annexure-1.

FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress
Property and equipment

Capital work-in-progress

Civil works
Advance to suppliers

Advance for purchase of property - related party

Provisions for impairment against advance for purchase of property

Totat capilal wark-in-progress

Note

10.1
10.2

2018 2017
----- (Rupees in '000} -----
560,353 506,200
1,750,225 1,855,376
2,310,578 2,361,576
532,406 491,147
27,947 15,083
251,680 251,680
{251,680) (251,680)
560,353 506,200

e



, 10,2 Property and Equipment

At 01 January 2018
Cost

Accumutated depreclation
Net book value

Year ended December 2018

Opening net book value

Cost:
Addilions
Disposals
Write off

Depreciation:

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals
Write off

( Closing net book value

At 31 December 2018
Cost

Accumutated depreciation
Net book value

Rate of depreciation (%)

At 01 January 2017
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended December 2017

Opening net hook value

{ Cost:
Additions
Disposals
Write off

Depreclation:

Depreciation charge for the year

Disposals
Wite off

Closing netlbook value

At 31 December 2017
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Rate of depreciation {%)
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2018
Electrical,
Leasehold  Culdingon . itire office and
Leasehold \ Vehicles Total
land and fixture computer
land
equipment
T CORTEI Y « (Rupees in '000) =---smmecmmmommm e
707,104 1,198,202 343,950 4,606,603 86,917 3,942,776
- (679,643) (238,969) (1,216,440} (52,448) (2,087,400}
707,104 618,669 104,981 390,163 34,469 1,865,376
707,104 618,659 104,981 390,163 34,469 1,855,376
- 5,093 1,419 97,673 - 104,085
- - (2,270) (1,107) {23,934} (27,311)
- (12,200) (150) (863) - (13,213)
- (70,907) {26,681) (85,908) {10,075} {192,471}
- - 2,086 737 11,856 14,678
- 8,416 61 604 - 9,081
707,104 549,061 80,546 401,199 12,216 1,750,225
707,104 1,191,095 342,949 1,702,206 62,983 4,006,337
- (642,034) (262,403} (1,301,007} (50,668) (2,256,112)
707,104 549,061 80,546 401,199 12,318 1,750,225
- 5% - 10% 10% 10% - 50% 20%
2017
Electrical
Buliding on '
Leasehold Leasehold Furniture office and Vehicles Total
tand and fixture computer
land
equipment
ek d e b e (Rupees In"000) --rmmmeemremrcmmmnsnnn s
707,104 1,405,998 331,959 1,595,637 78,201 4,118,899
- (647,086} {212,022) {(1,157,364) {(47,937) (2,064,399)
707,104 758,912 119,937 438,283 30,264 2,054,560
707,104 758,912 119,937 438,283 30,264 2,054,500
- 54,017 16,499 40,469 17,931 128,916
- (32,227) {4,508) {29,503) (9,215) (75,453)
- (229,586) - - - {229,586)
- {100,656} {30,682} {84,965) {11,288} (227,591)
- 21,849 3,735 25,879 6,777 58,240
- 146,350 - - - 146,350
707,104 618,659 104,981 390,163 34 469 1,855,376
707,104 1,198,202 343,850 1,606,603 86,917 3,942,776
- {579,543) (238,969) (1,216,440} (52,448) (2,087,400)
707,104 618,659 104,981 390,163 34,469 1,855 376
- 5% - 10% 10% 10% - 50% 20%

g
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Disposal of assets - Related Party

Details of disposal of fixed assets made to any related parly otherwise than through a regular auction are as follows:

Description Cost %t:;l:;nct;;at:g: \?aolzz prjzéids ’:iﬂizzz:afl Particulars of purchaser
8 e (Rupees in "000) -----comemmmvmmeenans
Vehicles ‘
Mercedes Benz 20,152 10,076 10,076 10,076 As per Mr. Shafgaat Ahmed - Ex
Bank's policy CEO
Corolla Altis Grande 2,453 450 2,003 2,003 As per Mr. Shafqaat Ahmed - Ex
. Bank's policy CEO
31 December 2018 22,605 10,526 12,079 12,079

Property and equipment include assets that are temporarily idle amounting to Rs.878.3 (31 December 2017: Rs.878.7) million.
Fully depreciated property and equipment

Details of property and equipment that are fully depreciaied and are slill in use are as follows:

2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) «-----
Building on leasehold land 197,555 126,045
Furnilure and fixture 132,102 49,520
Electrical, office and computer equipment 974,997 854 442
Vehicles 42 472 21,051

1,347,126 1,051,058

2018 2017
Note ... (Rupees in "000}) -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Compuler software and core deposits 11.18& 11.2 793,599 941,315
Brand : 11.4 383,145 383,145
Goodwilll 396,117 396,117

1,572,861 1,720,577

2018
Computer Core. Total
sofiware Deposits

---------------- (Rupees In "000} ---mmuvuureees
At 01 January 2018
Cost 757,589 1,386,000 2,143,589
Accumulated amortization (669,712) (532,662)  (1,202,274)
Net book value 87,877 853,438 941,315
Year ended December 2018
Opening net book value 87,877 853,438 941,315
Cost:
Additions
- through acquisitions / purchased 38,593 - 38,593
Accumulated Amortization:
Amortization charge for the year (53,326) {132,983) (186,309)
Closing net book value 73,144 720,455 793,599
At 31 December 2018
Cost 796,182 1,386,000 2,182,182
Accumutated amortization (723,038) (665,545)  (1,388,583)
Net book value 73,144 720,455 793,589
Rate of amortization (%) 20% -33%  8.33% - 10%
Useful life 3to 5 Years 10to 12 Years

G~
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2017 .
Computer Core Deposits Total
software
T e (Rupees in "000) «-----xememmneenes

At 01 January 2017
Cost 721,184 1,386,000 2,107 184
Accumulated amortization (614,032) (387.879) {1,001 ,Qj 1)
Net book value 107,152 998,121 1,105,273
Year ended December 2017
Opening net bock value 107,152 958,121 1,105,273
Cost:
Additions
- through acquisitions / purchased 36,405 - 36,405
Accumulated Amortization:
Amortization charge for the year (55,680) (144,683} (200,383}
Disposals - - -
Closing net book value 87,877 863,438 941,315
At 31 December 2017
Cost 757 589 1,386,000 2,143,589
Accurmitated amortization (669,712) {532,562) (1,202,274}
Net book value 87,877 853,438 941,315
Rate of amortizalion (%) 20% - 33% 8.33% - 10%
Useful life 3to5 Years  10to 12 Years

11.2 Core deposit is an intangible asset acquired by the Bank during its amalgamation with Ex-Emirates Global Isfamic Bank Limitad
and Ex-Burj Bank Limited. The value of core deposit has been valued by independent valuer. The carrying amount of core
deposits is Rs. 720.455 {31 December 2017: 853.438} million with a remaining amortization pericd of 8 years.

11.3 Intangible assets include computer software that are fully amortized and are stil in use aggregating to Rs.637.966 (31
December 2017: R5.549.992) million.

11.4 Intangible assets include brand having indefinite useful life with a carrying amount of Rs.383.145 (31 December 2017:
Rs.383.145) million. This represents Bank's ability to attract pnew customers and generate superior returns from existing
customers due to brand recognition, The management considers that the benefits from usage of brand will be available to the
Bank for indefinite time period.

11.5 During the year, the management has assessed the fair value of the Bank which exceeds its broakup value. IAS 36
“Impairment of assets" requires that an impairment loss shall be recognised for a cash-generating unit if, and only if, the
recoverable amount of the unit {group of units) is less than the carrying amount of the unit (group of units). Accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognised in these financial statements on the Intangible assets.

The key assumplions tsed for the purpose of the projections are as under:
- Riscount rate - Pre tax 19.75% per annum

Discount rates

Discount rates take into consideration the time value of morey and individual risks of the underiying assets that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rale calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Bank.
Adjustments to the discount rate are made lo factor in the specific amount and timing of the future tax flows in order to reflect a
post-tax discount rate.

Terminal growth value

Terminal growth rate is a stable growth rate at which an asset will continue to grow perpetually. It is calculated as average price
1o book value of comparable companies i.e. 0.87 multiplied with the year end book value of the Bank.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that after considering the various scenarios no reasonable possible change in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

L
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13.

131

2018
' At Jan 01 Recognised Recgonised in At Dec 31
. 12. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 2018 in P&L A/C OCi 2018
e TLT e — (Rupees in '000) ---r---erererarcmmmininiien
Deductible Temporary Differences ony:
- Tax losses carried forward 2,065,194 (83,041) - 1,972,153
- Minimum tax 436,202 8,221 - 504,423
- Post retirement employee benefits 17,621 - (7,979) 9,542
- Provigion against assels 905,313 161,199 - 1,066,512
3,474,230 86,379 {7,979) 3,552,630
Taxable Temporary Differences on:
- Surplus on revaluation of investments 87,011 8,111 (97,988) (2,866)
- Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets -
net of tax effect of incremental
depreciation transferred to retained earning {179,680) - 111 (179,569)
- Accelerated tax depreciation {142,578} 11,290 - {131,286)
(235,245) 19,401 (97,877) {313,721)
3,238,985 105,780 {105,8586) 3,238,209
2017
At Jan 01 Recognised Recgonised in At Dec 31
2617 in P&L AIC od! 2017
------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) - mrmmumviimnemimsiii e
., Deductible Temporary Differences on;
( - Tax losses carried forward 1,837,553 217,641 - 2,055,194
- Minimum tax 432,702 63,5600 . 496,202
- Post retirement employee benefits 14,715 - 2,806 17,521
- Provision against assets 469,399 (G4,086) - 906,313
3,254,369 217,085 2,806 3,474,230
Taxable Temporary Differences o
- Surplus on ravaluation of investments {31,761) - 118,772 87,011 ]
- Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets -
net of tax effect of incremental
deprecialion transferred to retained earning (186,171) - 6,491 (179,680)
- Accelerated tax depreciation (163,300) 20,724 - (142,576)
(381,232) 20,724 125,263 (235,245)
2,873,137 237,779 128,069 3,238,985

The deferred tax asset has been recognised in these financial statements as the management estimates that sufficient taxable
profits will be available in future years against which the unused carry forward lax losses and other deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax asset on minimum tax has been recognised in these financial statements based on
avaifability of taxable profits to ulilize the aforesaid asset. The estimates of Rdure laxable profits are based on financial
projections of the Bank for the next five years approved by the Board. The projections involve certain key assumptions
underlying the estimation of future taxable profits. Key assumptions include income tax rates, cost to income ratio, deposit
composition, Kibor rates, growth of deposits and isfamic financing, investment returns, product mix of Islamic financing and

refated assets, polential provision against assets and branch ex

may have an effect on the realisability of the deferred lax asset.

OTHER ASSETS

Profit / return accrued in local cusrency
Profit / return accrued in foreign currency

Advances, deposils, advance rent and other prepayments

Advance {axation {(payments less provisions)
Receivable in respect of defined benefit plan
Receivable against sale of shares

Non-barnking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Branch adjustment account

Unrealised gain on re-measurement of forward exchange contracts

Stamps and stationery
Acceptances
Others

Less: Provision held against other assets
Other assets {net of provision}

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acquired in

salisfaction of claims
Other assets - total

Markel valte of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

pansion plan. Any significant change in the key assumptions

2018 2017
Note ... (Rupees In '000) «-----
2,222,222 2,061,371
15,330 12,399
676,239 724,044
314,565 351,742
21,897 12,579
8,980 72,739
13.1.1 1,661,527 1,800,544
64,890 21,919
204,872 140,174
4,925 5,722
3,737,369 1,991,792
248,218 232,370
9,181,034 7,427,395
13.2 {148,305) (148,305)
9,032,729 7,279,090
13.1.4 511,691 512,462
9,644,420 7,791,552
2,247402 2,361,522

L}_‘M
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’ ,#3.1.1 The non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims have been revalued by professionally qualified valuers listed on
Pakistan Banking Association panel of valuers namely Oceanic Surveyors Private Limited, Al-Noor Consuliants & Evaluators,
Professional Assaciates, Harvester Services Private Limited, Asrem Private Limited and Medallaion Services Private Limited,

-

2018 2017
Note . (Rupees in '000) ------
13.1.2 Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
Opening balance 2,313,008 2,351,512
Additions - 248,000
Revaluation surplus/deficit - net (316) (18,548}
Disposals (113,804) (242,291)
Depreciation for the year (25,667) {25,667)
Closing balance 2,173,219 2,313,006
13.1.3 Gainfl.oss on Disposal of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
Disposal Proceeds 122,000 275,000
less
- Cost {113,804) (242,291)
Gain on disposal 8,196 32,709
(j"w". Provisioni held against other assots
Non-performing receivables 148,059 148,059
Others 246 246
148,305 148,305
13.2.1 Movement in provision held against other assets
Opening balance 148,305 144,520
Charge for the year - 8,381
Reversal during the year - (4,698)
- 3,785
Closing balance 148,305 148,305
14.  BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakistan 3,697,477 3,658,120

Qutside Pakistan

3,697,477 3,668,120

1f DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Secured
Borrowings from Slate Bank of Pakistan
Under export refinance scheme 16.1 3,703,399 3,208,400
Unsecured
Overdrawn nostro accounts 132,623

3,836,022 3,208,400

16.1  The range of profit rates on these borrowings is 1.0% to 2.0% (31 December 2017: 1.0% to 2.0%) per annum. The maximum
limit approved by SBP to the Bank under Islamic Export Refinance Scheme is Rs.4.65 (31 December 2017 Rs.4.85) billion.
The above contracts will mature starting from 19 January 2019 to 02 July 2019,

2018 2017
------ (Rupees in '000) -----x
15.2  Particulars of due to financiaf institutions with respect to currencies

In tocal currency 3,703,399 3,209,400
in foreign cusrency 132,623 -
3,836,022 3,209,400

it
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DEPQOSITS AND OTHER ACGGOUNTS

2018 . 2017 o
In focal In foreign Tolal In tocal In foreign Total
currency currencles currency currencies
O {RUpees i1 000 oo
Customers - .
Current deposils 20,537,128 3,462,711 23,099,839 18,621,802 3,586,152 22,107,954
Savings deposits 40,960,738 4,852,170 45,312,908 485,407,093 2,927,253 48,335,246
Term deposils . 19,551,887 927,952 20,479,839 17,810,291 714,756 18,530,047
Cthers 2,035,387 - 2,035,387 1,359,486 . 'I,359,48_G_
83,085,140 9,242,833 92,827,973 84,089,472 7,233,261 91,332,733
Financlal Institlutions _
Currend denosils [ 30,254 19,405 49,654 80,511 7.776 38,287
Savings deposits 6,042,698 531 6,143,329 4,449,396 459 4,449,855
Term deposils 1,494,050 - 1,494,050 752,060 - 752,050
7,567,002 20,036 7,037,038 5,281,957 8,235 5,290,192
90,652,142 9,262,869 99,915,011 089,381,428 . 7,241,496 95,622,025 .
2018 2007
Composition of deposis " {Rupees In'000) -
- Individuals 43,860,050 44,489,466
- Governmenlt {Federat and Provincialy 3,495,032 2,296,551
- Public Seclor Entilics 362,919 6,208,340
- Banking Companies 1,475,984 Q0
- Non-Banling Financlal Instilulions G,111,054 5,284,202
- Privale Seclor 31,109,992 38,337,876
99,915,011 05,622,625

This Includes deposits eligible lo be cavered under Insurance arranyements amounling lo Rs.66,096 {31 December 2017 Rs.56,473) nillion.

2018 2017
SUBORDINATED DEBT MNoie === (Rupees in '000) -----
Tier I rudaraba sukuk - firsl fssue 17.1 867,136 1,142,852
Tier It mudaraba sukuk - second Issue 17.2 1,500,000 1,500,000
AddHivnal Tier [ capital i7.3 1,389,211 -

3,746,377 2,642,062

I Seplember 2014, the Bank issued regulatory Shariah compliant unsecured, subordinated brivately pfaced Tier-ll Sukuk (First {ssue) based on

Mudaraba of Rs.2 Billion as instruments of redeemable caphal under section 66 of the Companies Acl, 2017, A brief desariplion of Tier-It Sukuk (First
tssue) is as follows:

Credil Rating A- by PACRA (The Pakistan Credit Raling Agency Limited) - o

Issue Date 26 September 2014 ]

Tenor 7 years from the issue dale. L

Profil paymen! requency Semi-annually in arrears _

Redemption Semi-annuaily o

Expecled Periodic Profit Amount {Mudaraba  [Mudaraba Profit is compuled under the General Depositors' Pool on the basis of Profil Sharing Ratio

Profit Amount) {PSR} and monthly weighlages announcad by the Bank. Profit rate is 6 Month KIBOR + §.25% per
anaum.

Calt Oplion The Bank may call Ties-Il Sukok with priofr approvat of SBP after completion of five years frony the
date of issue. . ]

l.oss Absorbency The Tier-# Sukuk, at the option of the SBP, will be fully and permanently converded into coninon
shares upon the occurrence of a Point of Mon-Viabillty (PONVY tigger evenl as determinad by SBP or

L for any other reason as may be direcled by SBP,

Lock-in-Clause Profit andfor redemplion amount can be held back in respect of the Tler-li Sukuk, if such payment will
result in a shortfall in the Bank's Minkmum Capilal Requirement (MCR) or Capilel Adequacy Ratla
(CAR) requirement. )

In August 2017, the Bank issuad regulatory Shariah compliant unsecured, subodinated privately placed Fler-ll Sukuk {Sacong Issue) based on

Mudaraba of Rs,1.5 8illion as nstrumenls of redeemable capltal under seclion 66 of (e Companies Act, 2017. A brief desciiplion of Tier-it Sukuk
{Second tssue) Is as lollows:

Eredil'l?a!ing A by JCR-VIS Credit Raling Company Limiled.

Issue Dale August 22, 2017 o

Tenor 7 years from the issue dale. )

Profit paymenl frequency Semi-annually in arrears - T

Redemplion Bullet payment at the end of the seventh year, o

Expected Periadic Profit Amount (Mudaraba  [Mudaraba Pioft is compuled under the Ge@éﬁﬂjﬁﬁon the I)asﬁﬁmmring—liﬁﬁ

Profit Amuount) (PSR) and monlhly welghtages announcad by the Bank, Profd rate is 6 konlhs KIROR + 0.75% per
anntr.

Cail Oplion The Bank may call Tier-Il Sukuk wilh prior approval of SBP after complelion of five years from the
dale of issue.

Loss Absorbency The Tier-l Sukuk, al the option of lhe SBPF, wil! be fully and permanently converted Thlo comnion |
shares upon the cccurrence of a Point of RNon-Viability (POMNVY) lrigger evenlt as determined by SBP or
for any other reason as miay be direclad by SBP.

Lock-in-Clause Profit amour can be held back respect of the Tier-# Sukuk, if such payment will result In a shorifall
in the Bank's Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) or Capilal Adequacy Ralio {CAR) regirement.

PT
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.17.3 In December 2018, the Bank issued regulatory Shariah compliant unsecured, subordinated privately placed Additional
Tier-1 (ADT-1) Capital based on Modaraba of Rs,1.4 Billion as instrument of redeemable capital under section 66 of the
Companies Act, 2017. A brief description of Additional Tier- (ADT-1) Capital is as follows:

18,

Credit Rating Not raled
Issue Date 26 December 2018
Tenor Perpetual
Profit payment frequency Monthly in arrears.
Redemption Perpetual

Expected Periodic Profit Amount
{(Mudaraba Profit Amount)

Mudaraba Profit is computed under the General Depositors® Pool on the
basis of Profit Sharing Ratio {PSR) and monthly weightages announced by
the Bank. Profit rate is 1 Year KIBOR + 2,50% per annurm,

Call Option

The Bank may call Tier-Il Sukuk with prior approval of SBP after completion
of five years from the date of issue,

Loss Absorbency

The ADT-1 Capital, at the option of the 8BP, will be fully and permanenily
converted into common shares upon the occurrence of a Poaint of Non-
Viability (PONV) trigger event as determined by SBP or for any other reason
as may be directed by SBP,

Lock-in-Clause

Profit andfor redemption amount can be held back in respect of the ADT-1
Capital, if such payment will result in a shorifall in the Bank’s Minimum
Capilal Requirement (MCR) or Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) requirement.

2018 2017
OTHER LIABILITIES Note weeeen (Rupees in '000) --.---
Return on deposits and borrowings:
- payable in local currency 614,569 521,698
- payable in foreign currencies 4,334 2,643
Accrued expenses 325,160 323,905
Advance payments 636,790 728,936
Charity fund balance 18.1 46,736 76,218
Security deposits against ijarah 822,737 1,213,895
Payable against purchase of listed shares 66,273 182,324
Takaful payable against ijarah and diminishing musharakah assets 254,756 213,935
Acceptances 3,737,369 1,991,792
Others 404,345 501,529
6,913,069 5,756,875

Charity Fund
Opening balance 76,218 49,928
Additions during the period
Received from customers on account of delayed payment 51,570 44,793
Dividend purification amount 1,773 -
Non-shariah compliant income - 14,433
Others 417 -

53,760 59,226
Payments / utilization during the period
Education (16,007) (7,801)
Health (32,824) (13,607)
Mass wedding (1,530) (1,350)
Ramzan rashan drive - (3,313)
Infrastructure and development (7,500} -
Others (25,382) (6,865)

(83,243) (32,938)
Closing batance 46,735 76,218

feiiy
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19, SHARE CAPITAL
© 191 Authorized Capital

2018 2017 2018 2017

Number ofshares e {Rupees in '000) ------
2,000,000,000  1,800,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 20,000,000 18,000,000

19.2  Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2018 2017 2018 2017
Numberofshates (Rupees in '000) ------
Ordinary shares of Rs, 10
450,000,000 450,000,000 each fully paid in cash 4,500,000 4,500,000

Issued for consideration

923,962,760 923,962,760 other than cash 9,239,628 9,239,628
1,373,962,760  1,373,062,760 13,739,628 13,739,628
- - Less; Discount on issue of shares (632,766) {632,766)
1,373,962,760  1,373,962,760 13,106,862 13,106,862

19.3  Shareholders having more than 10% shareholding in 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Number of  Percentage of Numberof Percentage of
Name of shareholder shares held  shareholding shares held shareholding
AlBaraka Islamic Bank (Bahrain) B.S.C. {¢) 812,446,082 59.13% 812,446,582 59.13%
Islamic Corporation for the Development
of the Private Sector 162,847,717 11.85% 162,847,717 11.85%
Mal Al Khaleej Investment L.L.C. 158,360,039 11.53% 168,360,039 11.63%
(
' 2018 2017
Note ~  ------ (Rupees in '000) ------
20.  SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of, _
- Available for sale securities 8.1 31,361 l (248,604)
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 20.1 512,040 512,810
543,401 264,206
Referred tax on surplus / (deficit} on revaluation of:
- Available for sale securities {10,9786) 87,011
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 20.1 (179,213) (179,483)
: {190,189) (92,472)
353,212 171,734

AL,
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: 2018 2017
A Note e (Rupees in '000} ------
' o .
20.1 Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets
acquired in satisfaction of claims
Surplus on revaluation as at January 1 512,810 531,811
Recognised during the year - 26,362
Realised on disposal during the year - net of deferred tax (316) {44,909)
Transferred to accumulated loss in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred tax {295) (295)
Related deferred tax liability on incremental
depreciation charged during the year (159) {159)
Surplus on revaluation as at December 31 512,040 512,810
Less: related deferred tax liability on:
- revaluation as at January 1 (179,483) {186,133)
- revatuation recognised during the year - {9,227)
- surplus realised on disposal during the year 111 15,718
- incremental depreciation charged during the year 159 159
(179,213) {179,483)
332,827 333,327
21 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
~Guarantees 21.1 6,102,780 7,115,257
- Commitments 21.2 24,431,754 17,225,950
30,534,534 24,341,207
21.1 Guarantees:
Financial guarantees 243,587 274,807
Performance guarantees 4,203,683 4,887,914
Other guarantees 1,655,510 1,952,636
6,102,780 7,115,257
21.2 Commitments:
Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions
- letters of credit 6,681,946 8,082,529
- Shipping guarantees - 2,650
6,681,946 8,085,179
Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts 21.2.1 17,738,138 9,130,270
Commitments for acquisition of operating fixed assets 11,670 10,501
24,431,754 17,225,950

N
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. 2018 2017
et (Rupees in '000) «-----m-mmv
21.2.1 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracis

P
v

Purchase 10,892,346 5,682,401
Sale 6,845 792 3,547,869
17,738,138 9,130,270

21.3  Other Contingencies

21.3.1 The Bank has received various assessment orders from Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) stating that
the Bank has short paid Federal Excise Duty (FED) on specific income of the Bank for the years 2009 to 2011
amounting to Rs. 86.5 million and Rs. 34.575 million in respect of year 2012, In response to the Bank's appeal,
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) has sel aside the orders relating to years 2009 to 2011 for fresh
adjudication and the said matter is pending decision for further proceedings. For year 2012, Commissioner Inland
Revenue (CIR) Appeal has dropped the proceedings amounting to Rs.8.991 million. Accordingly, the Bank has filed
the appeal before ATIR against the order of CIR Appeal amounting to Rs.25.584 million,

In respect of assessments of ex - Burj Bank Limited (now AlBaraka Bank {Pakistan} Limited), the taxation authorities
have raised a demand of Rs.1.9 million on account of minimum tax in respect of fax year 2011 which has been
challenged by the management and is currently pending before the ATIR.

(‘ .3.2 The Bank has filed appeals before ATIR against the orders in respect of assessment years 2001-2002, 2002-2003
and tax years 2004 to 2011. Moreover, the Income Tax Depariment has also filed appeals before ATIR against the
orders in respect of assessment years 2001-2002, 2002-2003 and tax year 2004 to 2011 issued by CIR Appeals.
Appeals filed by the Bank and the Income Tax Department are pending for decision. The management of the Bank is
confident that the appeals are likely to be decided in favor of the Bank and, hence no provision has been made in
these financial statements for the income tax claims amounting to Rs.116.512 (31 December 2017: Rs.116.512)

22 PROFIT/ RETURN EARNED ON ISLANHC FINANGING AND
RELATED ASSETS, INVESTMENTS AND PLACEMENTS

On:
a) lIslamic financing and related assels 6,395,523 5,318,191
by Investments 1,178,552 1,106,136
c) Due from financial institutions 445,033 222,926
d) Balances with banks 12,502 71,317
8,031,610 6,717,570
23 RETURN ON DEPOSITS AND OTHER DUES EXPENSED
( Deposits 3,512,413 2,780,128
Borrowings 41,588 108,056
Subordinated debt i 200,204 131,799
On export refinance under Islamic scheme 60,627 56,738
3,814,832 3,077,721
24 FEE & COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees 89,376 78,707
Consumer finance refated fees 86,439 77,621
Debit card related fees and income 61,261 58,873
investment banking fees 119,392 101,070
Commissiorg on trade 224,668 216,063
Commission on guarantees 42,460 72,714
Commission on cash management 2,228 1,391
Commission on remittances Including home remittances 10,097 8,836
Commission on bancatakaful 33,549 44,556
Others 13,331 8,412
682,801 668,143

fortin
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. 2018 2017
25 LOSS ON SECURITIES Note —mmeees {Rupees in '000) --weemmeemv
o Realised 25.1 {8,156) (4,559)
Unrealised - held for trading 8.1 {23,174} . (6,028)
{31,330) {10,757)
25,1  Realised gain / (loss) on:
Federal Government securities 3,721 (1,234)
Shares (12,370} (3,425)
Muiual fund 493 -
{8,156} {4,659)
26 OTHER INCOME
Rent on property 14,930 1,147
Gain on sale of fixed asseis-net 1,631 59,170
Gain on sale of non banking assets 8,196 32,709
24,757 93,026
27 OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation expense
Salaries, allowances, elc. 1,792,003 1,763,780
- Charge for defined benefit / conlribulion plan and other benefits 134,868 111,939
{\ 1,926,871 1,875,718
Property expense
Rent & laxes 723,449 792,908
Insurance 22,389 30,190
Utilities cost 186,853 191,238
Securily (including guards) 271 202,026 209,858
Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges) 27.1 80,728 79,488
Depreciation 70,907 100,655
Depreciation - non hanking assets 25,667 25,668
Others 10,275 9,386
1,322,294 1,439,391
information technology expenses
Software maintenance 169,175 172,074
Hardware maintenance 68,458 59,649
Depreciation 11,279 13,940
Amortization 53,326 55,680
Network charges 74,523 82,180
Others 31,332 34,033
L 408,093 417 556
- Other operating expenses
Directors’ fees and allowances 46,595 41,252
Fees and allowances to Shariah Board 3,161 3,446
Legal and professional charges 51,689 48,370
Outsourced services cosis 27.1 154,798 186,407
Travelling and conveyance 23,008 29,105
NIFT clearing charges 14,354 16,134
Depreciation 110,286 112,995
Amortization 132,983 144,683
Takaful and registration of Harah 91,841 137,641
Training and devefopment 11,489 6,183
Poslage and courier charges 17,278 19,996
Communication . 48,350 53,008
Stationery and printing 27 1 64,381 60,046
Marketing, advertisement and publicity 37,665 76,964
Repair and maintenance 40,639 47,110
Auditors' remuneration 27.2 17,852 11,804
Depositor's protection 45,178 -
Brokerage, commission and bank charges 158,836 100,900
Others 54,890 100,337
1,125,273 1,196,381
4,782,531 4,929,047

\%v\.-&/'
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These amounts include oulsourcing services with regards to janitorial services, security services, contractual
employees over third party coniracts and printing activities.

2018 2017
Note  ~-renveeeas (Rupees in '000) -----------
Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 2,512 2,392
Fee for limited scope review-half yearly 756 720
Fee for audit of group reporting 4,293 3,712
Fee for other statutory certifications 1,603 2,229
Fee for audit of AJK and Gilgit Region branches 424 404
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 5,950 650
Tax services 40 -
Sindh sales tax 1,246 809
Out-of-pocket expenses 1,028 888
17,852 11,804
OTHER CHARGES
Penailies imposed by State Bank of Pakistan 5,998 24,317
PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS - NET
Provisions for diminution in value of investments 8.3.1 295,080 114,042
Provision / (reversal) against non-performing Islamic financing and rel 9.5 470,837 {15,709}
Provision against other assets - 3,785
Fixed assels write off 4,112 83,236
770,028 185,354
TAXATION
Current (114,496) {96,143)
Deferred 105,780 237,778
{8,716) 141,635
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE
Loss after taxation for the year (253,728) {389,438)

--- Number of shares ---

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,373,962,760 1,373,962,760

Basic / diluted loss per share - Rupee {0.18) {0.28)
2018 2017

----------- {Rupees in "000) ~+rueeeuan

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balance with treasury banks 14,934,799 8,915,585

Balance wilth other banks 854,171 2,932,165
15,788,970 11,847,760

o
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Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flow arising from financing activities
Suboerdinated debt

2018 2017
----------- {Rupees in '000) ----vmv----

Balance as at 01 January 2018 2,642,852 1,428,568

Change from financing cash flows

Repayment of Tier It mudaraba sukuk-first issue (285,716) (285,718)
Issuance of Tier It mudaraba sukuk-second issue - 1,500,000
Receipt of Additional Tier | Capilal 1,389,241 -
Balance as at December 31, 2018 3,746,377 2,642,852
STAFF STRENGTH e Number ------emaeuu
Permanent 1,691 1,681
On bank contract 340 337
Consuitants 1 1
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 2,032 1,929

In addition to the above, 552 (31 December 2017: 626) employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned
to the Bank as at the end of the year lo perform services other than guarding and janitorial services.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

General description and funding policy

The Bank operates funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The benefits under the gratuity schems
are payable on retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum. The benefil is equal to one

month's last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service, subject to a minimum of {hree years of service.
The bank contributes to the gratuity fund based on the independent actuarial valuations,

Number of Employees under the scheme

The number of employees covered under the following defined benefit schemes are:

- Gratuity fund 1,712 1,405
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.,.';5.3 Principal actuarial assumptions
A . The actuarial valuations were carried out as al 31 December 2018 using the following significant assumptions:
2018 2017
Note —eveines Per annum ----v-ueen
Discount rate 13.75% 9.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 13.75% 9.75%
Expected rate of salary increase 8.75% 7.75%
35.4  Reconciliation of (receivable from) / payable to defined benefit plans
Present value of obligations 240,391 260,828
Fair value of plan assets {262,288) (273,407)
(21,897) (12,579)
35.5 Movement in defined benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 260,828 219,727
Current service cost 56,158 44,145
Interest cosl 21,092 18,906
{ Benefits paid by the Bank (656,619) {19,321)
Transferred within the year 3,452 -
Past service cost / other adjustment 6,683 -
Re-measurement gain {42,203) (2,629)
Obligations at the end of the year 240,391 260,828
35.6  Movement in fair value of plan assets
Fair value at the beginning of the year 273,407 272,058
Expected return on plan assels 24,539 23,947
Contribution by the Bank - net 49,368 7,369
Benefits paid (65,619) {19,321)
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assefs
over interest income loss 35.8.2 {19,407) (10,6486)
Fair value at the end of the year 262,288 273,407
35.7 Movement in receivable
under defined benefit schemes
Opening balance (12,579) (62,331)
( Charge for the year 62,846 39,104
' Contribution by the Bank - net {49,368) (7,369)
Re-measurement loss / (gain) recognised in OClI
during the year 35.8.2 (22,796) 8,017
Closing batance (21,897) {12,579)
35.8  Charge for defined benefit plans
35.8.1 Cost recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost 56,158 44,145
Transferred within the year 3,452 -
Past service cost / other adjustments 6,683 -
Net interest on defined benefit asset / liability (3,447) (5,041)
62,846 39,104
35.8.2 Re-measurements recognised in OC{ during the year
Loss / (gain) on obligation
- Financial assumptions (27,886) -
- Experience adjustment (14,317) (2,629)
Return on plan assets over interest income 19,407 10,646
Total re-measurements recognised in OCI (22,796) 8,017

2N
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) . : 2018 2017
T e (Rupees in '000) --eeemneee

© 35.9 Components of plan assets

Cash and cash equivalents - net 221,766 230,518
Units of Mutual Funds 40,522 42,889
35.10 Sensitivity analysis
1% increase in discount rate 215,834 234,230
1% decrease in discount rate 269,218 292,366
1 % increase in expected rate of salary increase 270,885 283,774
1 % decrease in expected rate of salary increase 226,268 232,677
36.11 Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year 45,336 37,760
35.12 Expected charge for the next financial year 45,336 37,760
35.13 Maturity profile
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
[ Distribution of timing of benefit payments 11.16 years 11.05 years
Less than 12 months 8,607 25726
Belween 1 year and 5 years 54,634 33,329
Between 6 and 10 years 138,601 102,932
Above 10 years 1,830,910 828,228
© 3514 Risks associated with defined benefit plan
- Investment risks:
The risk arises when the aclual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus creating a
shorlfall in the funding objectives.
- Longevity risks:
The risk arises when the actual tifetime of retirees is fonger than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree poputation.
- Salary increase risk:
{ .
The most comimon type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises
when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.
- Withdrawal risk:
The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumplions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation.
36 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Bank also operates a recognised contributory provident fund for all permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Bank and the employees, to the fund at a rate of 10% of basic salary.

2018 2017
----------- {Rupees in '000) ----w-v---
Contribution from the Bank 72,022 72,835
Conlribution from the employees 72,022 72,835
144,044 145,670

£
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

President / Chief

Executive Officer
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

--------------------------------- {Rupees in "000) -

Directors Executives®*

Fees and Allowances elc. - - 46,595 41,252 - -
Managerial Remuneration

i) Fixed 18,669 29,921 - “ 486,816 453,089
if} Cash Bonus / Awards 6,062 1,807 - - 40,596 31,082
Charge for defined benefit plan 1,827 401 - - 30,588 3,863
Contribulion to defined contribution plan 1,832 2,992 - - 41,812 40,340
Rent & house maintenance 4,845 5,069 - - 140,121 148,916
Utilities 1,615 1,690 - - 46,242 43,089
Medical 1,615 1,690 - - 48,039 44,609
Conveyance 666 696 - - 56,480 71,452
Cthers 5,368 3,641 - - 161,376 126,396
Total 42,199 47,907 46,595 41,252 1,062,070 962,825
Number of Persons 2 1 4 9 549 481

*Execulives means employees other than the Chief Executive Officer and Directors, whose basic salary exceeds five hundred thousand
rupees in a financiaf year.

The amount paid to president / chief executive officer inciudes managerial remuneration and related allowances that we paid during the
year to outgoeing president / chief executive officer,

The Bank also provides Bank mainlained car to certain execulives for their own use and business use.

SBP vide its letler NO. BPRINR&PLD/2018/17232 daled 08 August 2018 has differed the disclosure required in Annual Financial
Statements in respect of Governance and Remuneration praclices by 31 Decembar 2010,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability seltled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's
lengih transaction,

The falr value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices, except for {radable securities classified by the Bank as 'held to
maturity’. These securities are carried at amortized cost in order to comply with the requirements of BSD Circutar No, 14 dated 24
September 2004, As of 31 December 2018, the Bank does not have any invesiment as 'held to malurity'.

Fair valtre of unquoted equily invesiments is delermined on the basis of break Up value of thase investments as per the latest available
financiaf statements.

Fair value of Islamic financing and related assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due

lo absence of clrrent and active market for such assels and labilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.
‘The provision for impairment of Islamic financing has been calculated in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy.

The repricing profile and maturily are stated in note 43.2.3 and 43.4.1 to these financial statements.
In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and ffabilities are not significantly different from their
carrying values since assets and liabilities are eilher short term in nalure or in the case of customer Islamic financing and deposits are

frequently repriced.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inpuls used in making the
measurements;

Levet 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
Nability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {i.e. unobservahle
inputs). A
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The following {able provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Bank's asssls:

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assels - measured al fair value
tnvestments

IFederal Goveinment Securilies

Shares

Foreign Sccuiilies

Units of open end mutual fund

Financial assels - disclosed but nol measured at fair value
Cash and balances with freasury banks
Balances with other banks
Bue from financial institulions
Inveslaents
fsldmic financing and related assels
Othor assels

OH-balance sheel linancial instruments - measured at falr value

Fonward purchase of foreign exchange

Ferward sale of foreign exchange

On balance sheel financial instruments

Fhtancial assets - measured at fair value
Investments

Federal Government Securities

Shares

Foreign Sccurities

Units of open end mutual find

Financial assets - disclosed bul not meastired at fair value
Cash and balances wilh treasury banks
Balances wilh other banks
Due from financizl institutions
Inveslments
Istamic financing and relaled assels
Other aysetls

Off-balance sheel financial instruments - measvred al fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange

Forward sale of foreign exchange

There were no leansfer between lovet 2 and level 3 during lhe year.

38.2  Fair value of non-inancial nssels

Non banking assels acquired in salisfaction of elaims

MNen banking assels acquired in safisfaclion of claims

2018 .
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TJotal
rrrmmmsmsss s ceseaees (RUP2OS T OODY v e
- 16,982,204 16,202,204
936,837 - - 936,837
2,274,304 - - 2,274,304
3,211,141 16,982,204 20,193,345
. - - 14,934,700
. 454,171
- - 1,151,980
- - 75,011,976
_ - . . 6,347,786
- . - : 98,408,712
_ 10,892,346 - ___10492,346
- 6,044,792 ___G.Babran
I 27 R
Level | avel % Level 3 Tolal
------------------------------------- (RUpees 14 '000) - -aoeveeeee
- 15,848,797 15,848,797
920,172 - - 928,172
1,853,876 - - 1,863,875
—— 8927 S _69.727
2,792,048 15,918,524 - 18,710,672
- - .- 8,915 5085
2,932,165
- - 5,005,411
- - - GB2,914
- - - 71,203,056
- 1,432,067
- - - 93,261,188
- 5,582,401 - 5,502,401
3,547,869 - 3,547,869
o 2013 B
Level 1 level 2 level 3 Tolal
T (RUpges 30 000) -
L - - 2,173,214 2,173,219
2817 e
Level 1 l.evel 2 Level 3 Totatl
------------------------------------ (Rupees i '000) oo
- - 2,313,006 2,313,006

38.3  Valuation fechnigues used in determination of fair vatues within tevel 2 and fevel 3

[ Particulars

Valuation approach and inpul used

Eovemrneni of Pakistan - larah sukuk

The falr value of GOP fjaraly Sukuks are derived using PKISRY rates. The
PKISRV rales =re anncunced by Financial Market Assceialion (FhA) through
Reulers. The iales anncunced are simple average of quoles rceived from
approved dealers / brokers.,

Forward foreign exchiange contracts

The vatuation has been delermined by interpolating the mid rates announced by
State Bank of Pakistan.

Non banking assets_acquired in salisfaclion of claims - Gress

Non banking assels acquired in salisfastion of claims are revatlued on a periodic
basis using professional valuers. The valualion is based on thelr assassiment of
the market value of the assats,

Units of open end fund

These are valuad using NAV as declared by the respeclive fund Knagers.

e
P
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment Details wilth respect to Business Activilies

Profit and Loss

Nel profitf relurn eamed
Inter segment revaenue - net
Other income

Total income

Segmant direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profl f {foss) beforo tax

Statement of Financial Position

Cash and balances with reasury banks

Balances with other banks
Investrnents
Net inter segment lending

Islamic financing and related assets - performing
- non-parcrming

Others

Total agsels

ilills payable

Due to financial institutions
Subordinated debt

Depesits and other accounts

- Net Inter segment borrowing

Others

Total Habllitfes

Fquity

Tolal equity and llabilittes

Contingencles and commitments

Profit and Loss

Net prafit / return earned
Inter segment revenue - net
Otker income

Total Income

Segmont direct expenses

Intar segment expense allocation
Tolal expenses

Hrovisions

PProfit/ {less) before tax

Statement of Flnancial Positlon

Cash and batances wilh treasury banks

Balances with other banks
investments

Net Inter segment lending
12ue from financial institutions

Islamic financing and related assets - performing
- non-performing

Qthers
Total assots

Bills payable

Bue to financial Institulions
Subordinated debt

Deposits and other accounts
Nelinter segment borrowing
Others

Fotal liabiitles

Equity

Total equity and tabillitios

Caontingencies and commitments

Segmonl‘details with respect o geographical locations
GEQGRAPHICAL SEGMENT ANALYSIS

L.oss before tax

Total assets

Totat liabilities

Yotal equity and liabilities
Conlingencies and cornmilments

37
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Corperate Commercial & B Trading & Others Total
Banking SME Banking Retall Banking Sales o
o B T L R LT L L) T ——

3,701,746 1,311,332 (1,429,403) 748,752 (115,649) 4,216,778
- - 6,329,060 - 449,168 6,778,228
314,169 91,709 250,882 405,555 34,453 1,096,768
4,015,915 1,403,041 5,150,539 1,164,307 367,972 12,081,774
{155,962} (184,047) (2,507,743) (58,946} {1,881,831) (4,788,529_}
(3,674,983} {1,289,666) (1,120,284} (693,295) - (6,778,228}
{3,830,945) {1,472,713) (3,628,027) (752,241} {1,8681,831} (11,666,767}
(353,625)  (45,597) {74,706) [290,179) (6,922) (770,029)
(168,655) {116,269} 1,447,806 111,887 (1,5619,781) (245,012)
- - 14,934,793 - - 14,934,799
- - - 854,171 854,171
6,377,953 - - 14,967,362 - 21,345,325
- ~ 63,473,277 - 4,107,365 67,680,642
38,634,445 17,474,004 14,810,307 505,378 1,181,283 72,605,419
971,789 1,156,508 93,431 B 184,834 2,406,562
5,503,025 1,018,787 1,096,898 210,798 8,837,260 16,666,768 _
51,487,222 19,649,296 94,408,712 16,537,709 14,310,742 196,393,681
- - 3,697,477 - - 3,697,477
3,432,199 271,200 - 132,623 - 3,836,022
- - - - 3,746,377 3,746,377
3,840,499 3,368,473 87,560,819 5,145,220 - 99,915,011
40,878,365 15,569,117 . 11,143,160 . 57,500,642
3,504,815 566,775 1,702,610 4,820 1,134,049 6,913,069
51,655,878 19,765,565 92,950,908 16,425,823 4,880,426 185,648,598
(168,655) {116,269) 1,447,806 111,887 9,430,314 10,705,083
51,487,223 19,649,296 94,408,712 16,537,710 14,310,740 166,393,681
7.1;!1.694 5,613,032 1,670 17,738,138 230,581 30,765,115
2017
Corporate Commercial & Trading &
Banking SME Banking Retail Banking Sales Olller§ Total
------------------------------------------------------- {Rupees In'000) -l
3,183,475 1,020,094 {1,066,462) 544,471 (41,728) 3,639,849
- - 4,847,894 - 833,797 5,681,688
306,186 132,723 215,125 213,798 99,954 967,796
3,480,661 1.152,814 3,986,554 758,269 892,035 10,289,333
(119,995) {190,952) {2,543,974) {59,920) {2,038,523) (4,953,354)
(3,160,333 {1.028,450) {B36,715) {636,199) - (5,681,688)
{3,300,328) (1,219,402) {3,380,689) (695,110} (2,038,523) {10,635,052)
183,149 {215,532} {47,758) (17,194} (87,021) (185,354)
372,482 (283,120) 568,108 44,985 {1,233,50%) (631,073)
- - B,915,585 - - 8,915,585
- - 2,932,165 2,932,165
3,823,502 - - 13,569,984 - 19,393,485
- - 67,612,333 - 8,175,773 73,788,108
- - - 5,085,411 - 5,095,411
38,754,105 15,011,607 12,716,546 - 1,271,693 67,753,851
2,007,369 1,241,798 112,951 - 87,087 3,449,205
4,875,399 875,574 2,038,345 523,721 6,801,651 156,112,690
51,480,375 17,128,673 81,385,760 22,119,281 14,336,104 196,440,499
- - 3,658,120 - - 3,658,120
2,887,000 342,400 - - - 3,209,400
- - - - 2,642,852 2,642,852
3,856,625 3,372,832 85,626,750 3,766,718 - 858,822,925
42,542,208 12,841,957 - 18,303,941 - 73,788,106
1,822,080 754,910 1,542,781 3,657 1,633,467 5,766,875
51,087,893 17,412,008 00,827,651 22,074,316 4,276,319 185,678,278
. 372,482 (283,120} 588,109 44,965 10,058,785 10,762,221
51,460,375 17,128,979 91,395,760 22,119,281 14,336,104 196,440,499
9,242,824 5,957,612 10,501 9,130,270 230,581 24.57’1,7?_5:
- Pakistan
2018 2017
------ {Rupees in '000} ------
{245,012) (531,073)
128,513,039 122,652,343
118,107,956 111,890,172
128,813,039 122,652 393
30,765,115 24,571,788

.
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TRUST ACYIVITIES

The Bank commonly zct 85 trusles and In other fiduciary capacitios thal resull in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, relirement benefit plan_s and other institutions
including on behalf of cartain related parties. Thase are nal assels of tha Bank and, therefore, are not included in the Statemant of Financial Position. Tha foltowing is the list of assals he'd under

trusl:

2018 2017 2018 2017
Category Type Number of IPS account Faca value
---- (Rupees In '000} -----
lakaful company Governnient of Pakistan liara Sukuk 1 1 223,500 50,000
mplayee funds Governmant of Pakislan fara Sukuk 1 1 50,060 50,000
2 2 273,500 100,600

RELATED PARTY FTRANSACTIONS
Tha Bank has related party transactions with {ls parent, employea benefit plans and its directors snd Key Management Personnel,

The Banks enters into transactions wilh related pardiss in the ordinary course of businass and on substantially the same lerms as for comparable lransaclions with person of similar standing.
Contribulions 1o and accruals in raspect of employea benefit plans are made in accordanca with the actuarial valuations / terms of the contribulion plan. Remuneration lo the executives 7 officers is
determined In accordanca wilh (ha terms of thair appointment.

Details of transactions with related parlles during the year, other than those which have been disclosed alsawhere in these financial slalements ara as foliows:

2018 2047
Hoy Cther Hey
Paront Diroctars  management ralated Total Paronl  Dlrectors  management Other relatod Tolat
personnel parties personnok partles
MNole - - s (RUPEOS 1N TO00} oeerevrosttteenmsereecteese st csee e e ceeesera st ees e een emmmnens
Invastmonis
Investrnonts - - - 52,200 $2,200 - - - 52,200 52,200
Provision for diminution
in vatuo of invastmen!'s - - - 22,613 22,613 - - - 19,637 19,637
Islarile financing and ralated assels
Gpening bafanca - - 238,894 99,386 325,260 - - 233,323 153,345 388,660
Addilion during Iho yoar - - 80,800 - 60,600 - - 31,146 - 31,146
opaid during the yoar . - {37,697) {60,244} (97,941} - - (24,458) (62,979) {87 .437)
vransfor Inf{out) - - 4,775 - 4,775 {1,117} - {1,11¢}
Closling balanca o - - 256,572 30,22 296,694 - - 238,894 50,355 329,260
Fixad assels
Fixod assels - - - 251,680 251,680 - - - 251,680 251,880
PProvision for impairment i, - - - 251,680 251,680 - - - 251,680 251,660
Other assels
#Prolil receivable on Islamic
financing ang rolated assols - - 240 87 327 - - 199 142 am
Recaivable inrospecl
of dofined banefil plan - - - 21,897 21,897 - - - 12,579 12,579
2018 2017
Koy QOther Koy
Parent Directors  management related Total Parant  Directors managemaent Other ralated Tofal
parsonnel parties personnnl partlos
.......................................................................... {Rupeos In '000)
Subordinated debt
Openlng balance - - - 5,714 5,714 - - - 7,143 7,143
Issued during the year 17 1,389,241 - . - 1,389,241 - - - - -
Redemption during tha year - - - {5,714) {5,714} - - - {1,429) (t.429)
{losing balance _ 1,380,244 - - - 1,389,241 - - - 5714 5,714
Deposlts and olher accounts
Quoaning balanco 6,973 47,408 197,466 764,824 1,016,668 10,480 54,001 172,200 681,363 §18,1564
“aivod during Lho yoar 4 23,193 346,575 06,922 976,694 - 37,513 480,987 373,568 892,068
lhdrawn during tho yoar {1,040) {409,051) (372,372} (581,076}  [1,361,539) {3,507) (44,199) (504,582) (269,275} {841,564)
Transfer inffoul) - 550,175 {143,795} {5,862) 400,428 - - 48,881 {851) 48.010
Closing balance 5,937 214,722 27,874 784,716 1,030,254 £,973 47,405 197 466 764,824 1,016,668
Other Liabifitles
Relurn payable on deposils - 1,132 100 8,634 10,088 - 135 1,137 3,021 4,253
Return payable on Sub-ordinated debt 3,144 - - - 3,144 - - - 113 113
Other liabitittas - - - 657 657 - - - 657 657
Nen-fundod exposuro - - - 18,051 18,051 - - - - -
2048 2017
Koy Other Koy oth lated
Paront Dirgctors  managemont rolated Total Parent  Direclors  manapement or rolate Folal
persennal parlios porsennef parllos
Rolated parly transactions - . [RUPEES N "O0D) -venrreimerems et e mcmas et ee e st eeme e e enn
Income
I"rofit earsed on Islamic
financing and refatad assels B - 8,358 5.578 13,935 - - 8522 9,556 18,078
Revenua oamed from non fundad BXpOsuUre - - - 74 74 - - - - -
Exponse
Relun on deposils expanses - 13,046 1,185 39,337 53,578 - 1,695 7,480 32,818 41,693
Salarios, allawances and benefils - - 187,674 - 187,674 - - 210,063 - 210,063
Direclor feo and alher allowances - 16,505 - - 46,595 - 41,252 - - 41,252
Shariah Beurd leo - - - 3,161 3,161 - - - 3,148 3,446
Ront Expense - - 42,803 42,803 - - - 65,348 65,348
Conlribution o dofinsd conlribution pran - - 12,022 72,022 - - - 72,835 72,835
Contribution to definad bonelit plan - §2,848 62 846 - - - 39,104 39,104
Ralurn on Sub-ordinatad loan 3,144 - 81 3,225 - - - 498 488
et
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2018 2017
42 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS ... (Rupees in ‘000) ------
" g Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses) . 10,192,523 10,431,139
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):
Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 6,182,404 6,401,164
Efigible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital 1,192,947 -
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 7,375,351 6,401,164
Eligible Tier 2 Capital 1,988,245 1,929,943
Tolal Eligible Capital (Tler 1 + Tier 2) 9,363,696 8,331,107
Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):
Credit Risk 68,803,363 71,780,950
Market Risk 2,069,243 1,998,329
Operational Risk 8,667,185 8,103,776
Total 79,629,791 81,883,065
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 7.77% 7.82%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 9.27% 182%
Tolal Capilal Adequacy Ratio 1177% 10.17%
Leverage Ratio {LR):

(- Eligible Tier-1 Capilal 7,375,351 6,401,164
Total Exposures 137,949,522 41,187 419
Leverage Ralio 5.35% 4.53%
Liguidity Coverage Ralio {L.CR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 30,686,016 24,578,501
Total Net Cash Outflow 27,670,494 21,573,713
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 110.90% 113.92%
Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 87,255,154 76,134,641
Total Required Stable Funding 71,457,322 70,522 464
Net Stable Funding Ratio 122.11% 107.96%

421 The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS as per SBP instructions
issued from lime to time have been placed on the website, The link {o the full disclosure Is available at www.albaraka.com.pk.

43 RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary goal of risk management is to identify, assess and monitor risks inherent in the activities of the Bank and

take adequalte measures to manage and control these risks on timely basis. This will help in achieving sustainable

business growth and financial and non-financial targets with better protection and soundness. The Bank's aim is to

achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimizing potential adverse effects on the Bank's
( financial performance.

This section presents information about Bank's exposure to and its management and controt of risks, in particular the
primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from client or counterparly default (note 43.1).

- Market risk is exposure to market variables such as benchmark rates, exchange rates and equily indices {note
43.2).

- Liquidity risk is the potential loss arising from Bank's inability to meet its obligations when due (note 43.4),

- Operational risk Is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or
from external events and Shariah non compliance (note 43.3).

The objective of risk management is to effectively manage uncartainties that arise in the normal course of business
activities. The Bank manages the risk through a framework of risk management, policies and principles, organizational
structures, and risk measurement and monitoring processes that are closely aligned with the business activities of the
Bank.

Risk management principies
- The Board of Directors (the Board) provides overall risk management supervision. The Board Risk Commiltee

{BRC}) regularly monitors the Bank's risk profile. A
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- The Bank has set up objeclives and policies to manage the risks that arise in connection with the Bank's
activities. The risk management framework and policies of the Bank are guided by specific objectives to ensure
that comprehensive and adequate risk management policies are established to mitigate the salient risk elements
in the operations of the Bank.

- The eslablishment of the overall financial risk management objectives is consistent and tandem with the strategy
to create and enhance shareholders value, while guided by a prudent and robust framework of risk management
pelicies.

- The structure of risk management function is closely aligned with the organizational structure of the Bank.
Risk.management organization

The Board through its sub-commitiee called BRC oversees the overall risk of the Bank. The Risk Management
Department (RMD) is the organizational arm performing the functions of identifying, measuring, moenitoring and

controlling the various risk and assists the apex level committee and the various sub-committees in conversion of
policies into action.

The BRC comprises Executive, Direclors, Non Executive Directors and the Chief Risk Officer. One of the Non
Executive direclors of the Bank chairs the BRC, who is responsible for planning, management and control of the
aforementioned risks of the Bank.

The BRC has delegated some of its tasks of risk management to sub committees which are as follows.

Name of the committees Chaired by

Credit committee Chief Executive Officer
Asset and liability management commitiee {ALCO) Chlef Execulive Officer
Audit committee Non execulive director

Credit commitlee is responsible for approving and monitoring all financing transactions and also the overall qualily of
the asset portfolio. For this purpose it has formulated credit policy so as to effeclively monitor the risk profile of the
Bank's asset porifolio and to ensure strict adherence to the SBP's Prudential Regulations, Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962 and any other regulatory requirement.

ALCO has the responsibility for the formutation of overall strategy and oversight of the assets liability managerment
function. ALCO monitors the maintenance of liquidity ratios, depositor's concentration both in terms of overall funding
mix and avoidance of reliance on large deposits. The Board have approved a comprehensive liguidity management
policy.

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee works to ensure that the best practices of the
Cade of Corporate Governance and other policies and procedures are being complied with.

The Bank's Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Audit and Legal Departments support the risk management
) function. The role of the risk management deparlment is to quantify the risk and the quality and integrity of the Bank's
( risk-refated data. The Compliance Department ensures that all the directives and guidelines issued by SBP are being
complied with in order to mitigate the compliance and operational risks. Internal Audit Department reviews the
compliance of internal control procedures with internal and regulatory standards.

43.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to Bank as a result of failure by a client or counterparty to meet its contractual obligations
when due. Exposure to credit risks for the Bank arises primarily from financing and investing activilies.

The management of credit risk is governed by credit policies approved by the Board. The procedures set out the
relevant approval authorities, limit, risks, credit ralings and other matters involved in order to ensure sound credit
granting standards.

The Bank has a well defined credit structure duly approved by the Board under which delegated authorities at various
levels are operating and which critically scrutinize and sanction credit. The emphasis is to provide short to medium
term trade related Islamic financing and related assets to reputable names, which are self liquidating and Shariah
compliant. The risk appraisal system of the Bank has enabled it to build a sound portfolio.

Credit risk management framework forms part of the overall business strategy and credit operations of the Bank. The
principles for credit risk management have been laid down in the Bank's credit risk policy, credit manual and credit
operations procedure manuals. The policy has been developed in accordance with the requirements of the State Bank

of Pakistan and is reviewed and updated (where required) on periodic basis.
. ,’*“&4
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The Bank has a rigorous pre-approval evaluation process of credil risk embedded i each credit transaclions executed by {he’busines:s unils. The fant_lre
process broadly encompasses, gathering refevant information on the borfower, credit investigalions and visits, detailed credit appraisal and cred_ll _ns_k
assessment and measurement. In addition to monitoring credit fimits specified in the Prudential Regulations of the State Bark of Pakistan, credit limit
structure includes internal fimits as established by the senior management and the BOD, Internal limits include iimils with respect lo BOD approved_risk
appetile, indusiry/seclor, credit approval authorily and exposure with financial instilutions. All these limits are monitored on regular basis and exceptions

are reported to the relevant authorilies for their limely aclion whare nacessary.

Besides managing credil risk al transaction ievel, the Bank regulatly monitors credit risk at portfatio level and ensures that no undue com_:en({alion of risk
is present in the overall credit exposure. The Bank has well established management informalion set-up which allows efficlent and effective assessmeant,

monioring and management of its credit risk profile in various dimensions,

Provisions are delermined in accordance with the requirements of lhe SBP. The aulhorily to determine provisions and credil valuation adjustrments for

impaired claims, vesls in Credit Operations Departmant and is according to the SBP regulations.

Due from financial institutions

2018 2017 2018 2017

2018 2017

Non-performing due from
financial Instltutions

Due from financiat
institutions {Gross)

Provision held

Credit risk by public / private saclor e eaeee (Rupees in "000) o
Public/ Government - 5,095,411 - - - -
Privale . - - - - -
- 5,005,411 - - -
Investment in debt securities
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 20147
Gross fnvestments Non-performing investments Provision held

Credit rlsk by Industry sector T I (Rupees in "000) ——--e-veerro o LTI T
Agriculture, Foresiry, Hunting and Fishing 93,183 88,401 - - - -
Mining and Quarrying 125,569 68,834 125,568 - 44,433 -
Toxlile 125,069 124,351 125,069 107,845 113,759 107,845
Chemical and Pharmaceulicals 702,229 750,438 101,737 51,507 69,841 44,340
Cemenl 267,118 202,576 14,767 37,515 41,034 9,788
Sugar 41,961 41,861 41,961 41,961 41,961 41,961
Autemobile and fransportation equipment 62,710 66,122 62,710 27,317 36,472 7.406
Electronics and eleclrical appliances 471,931 31,343 32,461 - 20,011 -
Power (electricily), Gas, Water, Sanitary 5,433,328 4,522,924 189,960 B 75,650 -
Transport, Storage and Communication 1,325,000 1,325,000 . - - -
Financial 2,008,200 1,611,481 9,242 9,242 9,242 9,242
Insurance 52,200 52,200 52,200 52,200 22,613 19,637
Sovereign 11,005,360 10,632,866 - - - -
Others 205,317 153,762 182,484 71,409 98,794 38,651

21,819,175 19,672,256 998,160 398,995 573,850 278,770

Gross investments Non-performing investiments

Credit risk by public f private sector

Provision held

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
.............................................. {Rupees in "000) mreeem s
Public! Government 16,482,206 14,848,798 - - - -
Private 5,436,969 4,823,458 898,160 398,996 573,850 278,770
21,919,175 19,672,256 998,160 398,996 573,850 278,770

Islamic financing and refated assots

islamic finanelng and related
assels (Gross)

Non-performing Islamic
financing and related assets

Provision held

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Credil risk by industry sector o (Rupaes in "000) < mvee e
Agricullure, Forestry, Hunting anc Fishing 2,317,559 1,563,657 6,756 7.535 4,655 5,457
Mining and Quarrying 1,754,818 823,804 12,202 12,202 12,202 12,202
Textife 9,752,477 9,008,919 2,635,635 2,641,093 2,386,110 2,123,809
Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 5,856,868 5,491,892 482,645 486,718 382,639 308,458
Cement 2,042,173 1,200,000 . - - -
Sugar 2,062,308 2,714,624 323,744 608,142 71,243 20,810
Foolwear and Leather garments 941,280 801,811 60,0814 60,081 45,999 39,087
Automobile and transportation equipment 1,403,262 400,683 - - - -
Electronics and electrical appliances 4,004,209 3,699,684 570,021 555,030 288,359 258,624
Construction 1,827,631 1,3R3,782 296,169 440,161 129,294 101,813
Power (eleclricity), Gas, Waler, Sanitary 2,291,178 2,658,626 - 4,062 - 4,062
Wholesale and Retail Trade 2,706,967 2,995,312 92,564 80,140 40,206 48,009
Exporis/imports 1,049,190 1,039,901 29,022 41,270 7,123 5,869
Transport, Storage and Communication 8,412,242 9,175,629 70,368 381,440 37,309 62,330
Financial 126,294 236,441 89,035 102,804 88,051 101,820
Insurance 12,216 12,845 - 3 - i
Services 3,786,486 3,369,623 185,026 80,492 53,851 80,108
Individuals / staft 16,613,022 14,411,247 498,814 398,591 209,975 201,576
Food products and beverages 9,348,806 9,134,036 1,045,612 1,120,614 407,223 414,780
Others 3,763,013 5,434,753 822,812 630,954 449,805 413,341

79,771,098 75,192,269 7,020,606 7,661,332 1,614,044 4,202,127

e
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Islamic financing and related
assots {Gross)

Non-performing Islamic
financing and related assets

Provision held

2018 2917 2018 2017 2018 2017
Credit risk by pubHe / private sector 00 e e {RUPEES i "000) rrrrerraressrrcisimates s rsss e nrains e
Public/ Governmant 6,960,061 7,667,695 - - . -
Private 72,811,937 67,824,574 7,020,606 7,651,332 4,614 044 4,202 127
79,771,998 75,492,269 7,020,606 7,651,332 4,614,044 4,202,127
Contingencies and Commitments.
2018 2017
Credit risk by industry sector Amount in Rs '000
Agricuiture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 79,931 14,671
Miring and Quarrying 90,358 -
Textile 1,139,746 961,396
Chemical and Pharmaceulicals 1,472,627 3,066,488
Cement 51,006 222,341
Sugar - 44,865
Footwear and Leather garmenis 243,169 47,256
Automobile and transportation equipment 766,426 861,270
Elactronics and eleclrical appliances 1,352,578 639,134
Construction 653,167 1,834,411
Power {eleclicily), Gas, Waler, Sanitary 1,076,945 96,942
Wholesale and Retail Trade 1,239,035 1,754,338
Exporisfimports 4,031,713 123,919
Transport, Slorage and Communication 282,685 164,939
Financial 17,756,189 9,279,222
Services 766,732 1,343,713
Feod products and baverages 44,953 331,782
Others 2,707,855 3,685,071
. 30,765,115 24,571,788
Crodit risk by public / private sector
Public/ Government 331,370 329,475
Private 30,433,745 24,242 313
30,765,115 24 571,788

Concentration ot istamlic financing and related assols

The bank top 10 exposures on the basis of total {funded and nan-funded exposlres) aggregated fo Rs 17,054 (31 December 2017: Rs 15,702} miflion are
as following:

2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000
Funded 14,026,459 13,293,528
Nen Funded 3,027,678 2,407,960
Totat Exposure 17,054,138 15,701,488

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposures aggregaled to Rs 20,798 {31 December 2017 Rs 16,158) million, The bank's top 10 exposures are

 perfarming in nature.

Islamic flnancing and related assets - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & UtiHization

2018
Disbursements UHlization
KPK AN
! . . including
Province/Region Punjab Sindh including Balochisian Islamahad
Gllgit-
FATA e taros
Punjab 5,042 911 48,558,407 1,000,000 198,860 - 285,644 -
Sindh 32,599,364 3,210 32,596,154 - - - .
KPK including FATA 163,312 - - 163,312 - . -
Balochistan 22,610 - - - 22,610 - -
Islamabad 4,306,741 - - - . 4,306,741 .
AJK in¢luding Gilgit-Ballistan 19,249 - - - - “ 19,249
Totat 87,154,187 48,561,617 33,596,154 362,472 22 610 4,592,385 19,249
2017
Disbursements Utilization -
. KPK ) including
Province/Region Punjab Sindh fncluding Balochistan Islamabad .
Gilgit-
FATA e
Punjab 56,864,236 55,618,732 1,000,000 - - 245,504 .
Sindh 33,583,210 - 33,583,210 - - - -
KPK iacluding FATA 98,918 - - 98,918 - - -
Batochistan - - - - - - -
Islamabad 6,464,810 - - - - G, 464,810 -
AJK including Gilgit-Ballistan 1,084 - - - - - 1,084
Total 87,012,258 55,618,732 34,583,21¢ 95,818 - 6,710,314 1,084

e
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Market Risk

Markel risk is the risk that the Bank's eamings or capilal, or its ability to mee! business ebjeclives, will be adversely affected by changes in the level or
volatility of market rales or prices such as profit rates, credit spreads, commaodity prices, equily prices and foreign exchange rales.

The main cbjective of the Bank’s market risk management {s lo minimize market risk and to facilitate business growth within a contretled and fransparent
risk management frameawork,

Market risk arise from investment in sukuk, equities and dealing in foreign exchange {ransactions.
Market risk is baing monitored by ALCO and performs following functions in relation to market fisk:
- Regular periodic review of market risk, based on econemic review reporis.

- Keeps an eye on the sfructure / compasition of Bank's assels and liabilities and decide upon producl pricing for deposits, Islamic financing and
related assels.

- Develop fulure business sirateqy in view of the |atest frends / pelicy in the markel, economic conditions and local regufalory requirements.
- Review and recommend fo the Board of Direclors, new opporiunities for generaling revenues.

Statement of Financial Position split by trading and banking books

2018 2017
Banking book  Trading hook Total Banking bock Trading book Tolal
---------------------------------------- (Rupeos in "000) - -mcrvvrm e
Cash and balances with treasury banks 14,934,799 - 14,934,759 8,915,585 8,915,585
Balances with other banks 854,171 - 854,171 2,932,165 2,932,165
Due from financial institutions - - - 5,095,411 - 5,085,411
Investments 20,437,114 908,211 21,345,325 18,505,340 888,146 19,393,486
Islamic financing and related assets 75,011,976 - 75,011,276 71,203,056 - 71,203,056
Fixed assels 2,310,578 - 2,310,578 2,361,576 - 2,361,576
Intangible assets 1,672,861 - 1,572,861 1,720,577 - 1,720,577
Doeferred tax assels 3,238,909 - 3,238,909 3,238,985 - 3,238,985
Olher assels 9,544,420 - 9,644,420 7,791,552 - 7,791,552
127,904,828 908,211 128,813,038 121,764,247 888,146 122,652,393

Foretgn Exchantoe Risk

Foréign exchange risk arises from tha fluctuation in the value of financial ins
forelgn exchange risk management functicn is to minimize the adverse im
edrnings. The Bank manages this risk by selting and monitoring dealer,

batance sheel financial instruments,

lruments consequent {o the changes In foreign exchange rates. Obijective of
pact of foreign exchange assets and liabilities mismalch and maximize the
currency, inler expesures, stop loss and counter party limits for on and off

2018 2017
Foreign Foreign ™ Net foreign Foraign Foreign Net foreign
currency currency S;}LZ?:Z‘:& currency currency currency (::f[;b?!.?"ce currency
assets liabilittes axpostire assels liabliities 1e6k Hems axpostre
------------------------ {RUpees in 000) - reeeemmemerrraan Bt 1 2 4T L-T-T-J (I 11411 S
Pakistan rupee 122,056,956 107,227,736 4,046,554 18,875,774 115,976,712 103,227,632 2,034,532 14,783,612
United States dollar 6,046,429 7,927,340 {2,772,886) {4,653,797) 6,196,583 6,263,320 (1,089,473 (1,156,210}
Great Brilain pound 237,337 750,266 {689,304) {1,202,233) 166,442 626,303 {601,404} (1,061,265)
Eura 305,939 1,895,229 (445,641}  {2,034,931) 136,084 1,623,122 {360,674) {1,847,732)
Arab Emirates Dirham 142,374 167,696 - (25,322) 164,546 147,304 - 17,242
Japanese Yen 2,351 132,641 {138,723 {269,013) 7.896 2,466 - 5,430
Canadian Dallar 2,043 - - 2,043 935 - . - 935
Singapaore Dollar 23 23 - - 23 23 - -
Swiss Frank 11,427 - - 11,427 3,180 - 17,019 20,209
Chinese Yuan 8,158 7,023 - 1,135 - - - -
Malaystan Ringit 2 2 - - 2 2 - -
128,813,039 118,107,956 - 10,705,083 122,652,393 111,890,172 - 10,762,221 _
The exposures of the Bank to foreign exchange risk is also restricted by the statutory limil on aggregate exposure prescribed by the SBP.
2018 2017
Banking Trading book Banking book Tradlng book
------------------------ {Rupees in "000) s« cmccrorarranenn
Impact of 1% change in foreign exchange rates on
- Profit and loss account {39,971) 40,466 (19,349) 20,345
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a7 ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 218

Iha Bank has Basic indicalor Approach (BIA) fer assessing the capilat chargo for operalional isk. Under BYA (ho capital charge is calculaled by mu'tiphying asarags annual gross ncamae of lhe Bank over Lhe past
threo years with 15% as per guide!ings issued by SBP.

tha Bank cnsures thal the koy operalicnat risks are managae in a limely and effective mananer by ralsing awareness of operational sk, improving early warning information and atocating risk ovenership and
responsiviities. The Dank has doveloped poticies, guideines and manuals necessary for the mitigaton of eperational Ask

The Bank Is also supervised by the Shariah Board which sats out guidelings, policles and procedures for the Bank ta ensuro that all ils aclivities and products are Sharah comglian. The inlenal audit funciion of
tho Hank performs zegu'ar audit on various oporatlons of the Bank and monitors the key risk exposure areas 10 ensure that Internal vontrol procedures are In place and Ihose procedures ara able Lo mitigata risk
assoctated with operational aclivillos,

A business continuity progran have also been formulated ang approved by lhe loard of Birecloss to ensure uninterruplod Now of operalions of the Bank.

Liquldity Risk

tHguidity disk |s defined as the potenlial loss arising from the Bank's inabiity (o meet its obt

ation when due,

The Liquidily Coverage Ratio (LCR) Is a quantilative requirement which aims to ensure thal a bank ma'ntains an adequate levot of unencumbered high quality liguld assels which can easily be converted into cash
&t [ia or ne loss of valuo In private markots, lo withstand an acuto liquidily slrass scenario over a 30-day honzon al bath (ha entily and consolidated level.

LCR has been defined as Stock of fifgh quafity liquld assets {HQLAs)
Tolal net cash oulflows over the noxt 30 ca'endar days

Liquid assels compriso of high quality assels that can be readdy sold of used as colalera lo obtain funds In a range of sliess scenanios. There are hwo calegoiies of assets included In the stock of HOLAs, viz.
Level 1 and Lovel 2 assols, Lovel | assels are with 0% haireul w Levet 24 assols are with a min‘mum 15% halreul ang Lovel 28 Assats, with a maximum 56% halreut.

The term “Tolal nat cash oulltows® Is defined as he total expecled cash outflows minus total expecled cash inflows In the siress scenario for tha subsequent 20 calendar days.

The most significanl drivers of tho Bank's cash oulflow wera Relaif and unsecured whelesale funding. Unsecured funding ransactions Include funds provided by non-Enancia! corporate cuslomers, soverelgns,
central banks, muit?ateral devetopmenl banks and PSEs,

The objective of HSFR Is to reduce funding risk over a fonger time horizon by requiring banks to fund thelr azlvities with suffictenlly stsble sources of funding In order o mitigate tha risk of fuluie funding stress,

NSFR has been dofined o5 Avaitabla amount of Stable Funding (Funding Source)
Required amount of Slabts Funding (Funding Wserd

tho amount of available stabla funding (ASF) Is moasuted mainly on the bread characlenstics of the relative stabiity of a bank's funding sources (equity & liabiities), contractual malurity of ils fiabiltiss and the
differance in (ha tondency to withdraw (heir funding by differen! 1ypas of funding providers.

Tho amounl of requited stable funding (HSF) is measured based on tha broad choracleristics of lhe lquidity iisk profile of a bank's assels and off-ba'ance sheel (ON5) axposures

As por Dank’s Investmont Policy ALCO shall bu the management's goveralng commillee mainly respansible for Market and Liguidity (isks penaining to balance sheet and off-balance sheelitems. Hlis ALCO's
raspensibiily 1o oslablish and monitor lquidity largels as well as sirateglos and {actics lo meet thoso targels. Fudhermore, ALCO vt ensuro thal sufficient Equidity is available for unanticipated contingensies.
ALCO mantors Lhe maintenanco of kquidity ratios, depositor's cancentration belh In lerms of overad funding mix and avoldanca of refiance on farga individual deposits, The Board of Direclors have approved a
camprehensive bquidily managomend po'icy,

Management of Squidity (s contratty managed through the Treasury within the bank. The Bank has sufficlent lquidity seurces for oulllows and managemenl Is of Ihe view that we are adequalely liquid as requited by
LER & NSFR regulalions. The Asset and Labitily tlanagemenl Commitios (ALCO) of tha Bank Is respons:ble for oversighl of Equidily management and raview of pusitions on monthly basis andlor on need basis
based on systemic risks,

The Bank' has a comprehensive Contingency glan thal specifies siralegias for dealing with tho Equidily preblam and outfines particular funding sources thal would be deawn pon as pant of the overalt strategy, I
s oullings Igger peints that would ba Indicativo of the crisls and iays (he course of sction taken by the institution for handing such a crises.

Maturities of assets and Habifitles - based on contraciual maturity of the asscls and Nabilitios of the Bank
2018
Oyerg
Ocertiof OCyel7lotd Overtddays Cverfite Ovet2iol Ovet3te§ OGrerblo Overttoz  Geer2iad Overdtas
Total Upto 1 Pay days days {1 l!onni 2Months Months MNonths 9 Months mm;:::‘” years yeals Yeats Qver S¥ears
—— lRupees in '000) ——
Assels
Cath and ket s wih begsury baks 1T | 145 - . - v N M B - B - B z
254,47t 854,17t - - - - - - - . - . - -
21,345,318 §T0,445 - . - 1008802 | 4,885,281 4xpe00 - 1825000 | 3135,681 3138502 1,148,950 4,529,223
T5015976 HEQ4, 832 569,152 §65,27% 7,847,079 | 461,705 5390643 | (1,535,001 | 1825823 561,391 4.4809,516 0,575.376 16,142,053 6,820,175
Frazd asgets 2,310,518 ar 1102 1548 EXH] 6,509 L] 519,732 19,535 19,528 78,506 18,166 156,212 1.359,843
Vangtle assets 1,572,889 a2 2,556 2594 5,043 12,830 12830 29,452 N 33,450 135,650 102,045 125,543 1,054,254
Defrred tan zssets 3,215,509 - - - . . . . . 38,015 409,343 935,442 1,034,811 V5,148
[sES RN 9548420 325 | 1015088 435,738 2,200,767 | 4,081,180 TISAPE | eS| 202820 818,542 £45.702 20,39 537 78254
. 128,813,035 20,747,168 1.508,145 1,458,530 10055,162 741,128 10773441 13728358 2888364  1,318.980 8,535,402 HEGHAD 0,578,613 15411341
Habilites .
DEs payatle 3,647,477 3697.477 - N - B N - N N B N B T
JEEYER SN 1,835,082 132,623 - - 12,260 HOED | 1343753 ] 159LEN | B850 . - . . -
Depusts and ines 2ot PRRISAIE [ 77,834,250 445,614 540,480 2AT2ETT| 3067y | LBISSET | Xa41,225 { 1579419 [ 4.038,85¢ 593,694 631,606 1,426,653 -
Sditdrated dott 3,746,307 - - - - - 142,858 - 142,858 - 5,715 245716 . 2849,218
Oihet babhtes " §,913,06% 450 [ 1219632 Isesdl 1230408 | 588373 [ 270080 442,54 G524 385,314 08,703 423,213 33147 31,165
118,107,565 S1,850800  1,685.24€ 595021 3915555 4547060 638BE4L S AIIGST 2405360  4,423360  9.094,113 1,340,533 1,158,778 7,922,394
Telassals 10705083 (65,111,632 {77,109} $60,507 6142605 219404 4385797 8,235,751 481,053 {1,104 888}  7.50%,249 13,168 87T 17,418,643 jhAd 84T
Share capalngl 13,106,062
Ruseries 159,148
Arovmdated bass (2,914,339}
Sreptus e Fevahrzton of assels - rel of tae 153,212
—Toesany
2017
Ovel 1107 OCuerTta1d  Gverlddays Oserita OuerZtod Oyer 3106 Qveréta Ouer s Cvertto2  Over2lo} Cuerdte§
Total Upta 1 Dy days days tot MnnL:I.: 2 Months Honths #Monthy 9 Months mnn)t::’to ! years years Yesrs et §Years
[Rupees ln 000}
Assets
Cash ord bxdancas nithfressury backs 8,915,533 8815589 - - B - - - - - - - - -
Darces wih ool barks 2932165 2,932,185 - - - - . - . - . - . -
e from francied Instdtans 5695441 - - - - - - S.055.41% - . - - - -
kncstments 19333453 910,235 - - - 113,060 - - - 2843635 | 7.583,478 2,535,651 1,918,304 32813
Iefamic franoing andrefsted pssets - rat 203058 2743258 85720 1355180 9.0:5.085 | 4658040 | 5555713 | 11,788,200 | 3310553 23315808 | 7.592303 T.105,852 11,258,037 3319655
Faed assels 2,251,575 248 1455 1733 3972 7,447 7447 $28.542 22341 22,341 £3.252 £9.352 173042 1,414,278
Iriargble 255¢ls 1720577 145 2657 1112 ALK 13335 13.338 40.003 40603 49.009 160035 145228 165,657 1,068,341
Deferredtar ascels 3219535 - - . - - - - - 255948 €49.454 655258 1.135.62 $38.002
Orker assats 7,791,552 384510 332 333,427 1,133,545 1 1,053,407 €35,308 1.143.35) 289,805 1,352,483 3z6.62F 55,178 £51,018 +
122652323 15,871 23¢ 1,021,130 1.728.43% 10247497 9E052390 6672602 185L6,013 3£53008 6697384 16776557 10,582,545 15,335,165 9,644 €05
Bl pryatle 3658520 [ 3858120 - - - . - - - - - . -
04 1o fnandiatin 3,209,409 - . - - 852,507 £50200 | 1,505,700 - - - - . -
P5622925 | 71349430 | 1046933 435,087 0B 605 | 2551832 | 3096462 | 3280275 [ 1.851.227 | 2002555 575,258 631327 1292255 -
20642852 - - - - - 142,658 - 152,858 - 285718 235716 85708 1,500,600
5156875 §7.283 2450 410,685 1623611 1,223,226 355,237 §1.253 200.9%9 237,939 235312 4. 145 -
HLESQ.1F2  BLOFASIG 1337423 846,732 A6F7277  4.430,53 518,746 5561203 2035315 2201558 1,188,613 1213315 1,650,143 1,500,000
tetassets L i0762221 (65202632 (31835 ES1€85 6950220 1384332 5 3L4055 43412810 1607674 44530830 15617614 5319230 13,445.047 B 144,608
Bhare Capetat - nef 12,1055 £52
Heseives 152,248
Aoparadatedloss : (2675,723)

S.NERS o revaloton of 35848 - pilof tax 171,724
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Maturities of assets and liabllifies - based on expected maturities of the assets and Habilities of the Bank

Saving and curreat accounts have been buckeled on the basis of behavioural study conducled by the Bank.

Assels

Cash and balancos with freasury banks
Balances vith other banks

ua from financial Instlutions
Investmerds

Istamic financing und relatad assels - nel
Fixod assels

irangibla assels

Deferred tax assels

Other assets

Liablities

Bils payabla

Due o financlal instdutions
Reposils and other accounts
Subordinated debt

TNeferred lax ligbifities

Other liabittios

Net assels

Sharg capitalnel

ltoserves

Accumutated loss

Surpius on revatuation of assets - not of lax

Asscls

Cash and ba'snces vith reasury banks
Nafancas with olther banks

{3ua froim Bpancial insl-tutions
Inveslments

Istamlc financing and rolated assels - not
Fixed assels

Imlangibla assols

{eferred tax assals

Othor assats

Liabllities

Bizs payable

Duo o financia! Institutions
Deposits and other zccounts
Subordinatad debt

Delerred lax iabillies

Other ligp?ities

Net assels

Shara capital-net

Heservgs

Accomtlaled loss

Surplys on (evaluation of assets - not of lax

20918
" Owmcites  Owrss O“‘h”f , Ovartie? Ower2lo3d Overdtob  Over51o10  Above 10
Totat Upte 1 Konth Months tfonths ' OHYESE"D Years Years Years Years Years
[Rupeas in 000)
14,934,799 14,934,799 - - - -
854,171 854,171 - - . - - - - -
2£,345,325 970,446 5,594,183 432,000 1,825,000 3,135,981 3,739,502 1,818,930 4,429,223 100,000
75,011,976 12,986,382 10,025,348 11,585,301 3. 687,228 4,589,616 9,575,876 16,142,053 4,985,101 1,955,674
2,310,578 5,509 13,018 9,732 32,052 78,106 78,106 156,212 1,359,843 -
1,572,861 2,831 25,660 38,490 76,980 136,654 102,045 125,990 274,950 179,261
3,238,903 . . . 36,025 409,343 £93,482 1,034,811 765,248 -
9,544 420 4,103,865 1,856,358 1,093,815 | 1,041,082 645,702 20,399 557 762,641 -
128,613,039 33,869,004 17,514,567 13,729,358 6,205,344 8,995402 14,509,410 18,578,693 12,577,005 2,834,335
3,697,477 3,697,477 - - - - - N - -
3,836,022 144,823 £,383,79% 1.691,900 615,500 . - - - .
99,915,011 14,006,206 13,679,938 8797108 | 13412086 12,290,862 | 12,322,772 1281782t 141,684,468 | 3,897,055
3,746,377 - 142,858 - 142,858 285,716 285,116 - 1,500,000 | 1,289,22%
5,913,069 3,359,109 1,862,393 440,531 452 838 208,703 423,293 33,117 33,185 =
118,107,956 18,207,615 17,168,986 10,920,636 14623287  12,7853281 13,034,701 12,850,938 13,224,333 5,286,284
_ 10,705,083 $5,661,989 345,681 2,799,822 {8,417,938) (3,789,879} 1,477,708 5,121.675 {647,327) (2,451,949
13,108,862
159,348
12,914,319}
___3sa212
19,705,083
2017
Overttos  overdtes o, 9% Guyie2  Overzles Overdtes Overstefo Above 10
Totat tUpte 1 Month ver v ° Months to 1 v vor e lo ver 3to ver 3 to ove
Months Wonths Year Yoars Years Yoars Years Years
{RUPEES I DD} - -ereee ettt aa e e aan
8,916,585 8,015,585 - - - - - .
2,032,165 2.932,165 - . - B - . .
5,095,411 - - 5,095,411 . - - - .
19,393,488 910,238 113,050 B 26438695 7,988,176 2,638,651 1.816,304 3,283,264 -
71,203,056 13,927,248 16,604,753 11,788,700 5,635,559 7,562,303 7,105,858 11,259,082 2,259,508 1,080,147
2,381,678 7147 14,594 628,540 44,681 89,3562 89,262 173,012 397,843 1,618,435
1,720,577 13,336 28,672 40,069 80,017 160,035 145,238 165,957 310,050 779,263
3,238,985 B - . 256,948 §49,854 §55,258 1,139,923 203,471 334,631
7,791,552 2,174,117 1,718,713 1,143,363 1,689,288 328,827 58,178 681,016 - -
122,652,393 28,880,192 12,478,092 18,598,013 10,349,188 18,776,857 10,592,545 15,335,194 6,454,236 3,180,376
3.658,120 3,658,170 - : ; y : . - T
3,209,400 - 1,702,700 1,506,700 . . . N . _
98,622,925 11,264,051 12,235,561 8684,134 | 11,567,881 | 12,176,382 | 12,292,351 12,884,419 | 11801124 | 3,867,042
2,842,852 - 142,858 - 142,858 285,716 285,718 285,704 1,600,000 .
5,766,875 2,427,055 1,835,682 398,227 252252 287,939 236372 311,148 - -
111,890,172 17,349,226 15,217,001 10,697,061 11,892,971 12760037 12,814,439 13491271 13.101,424 3,867,042
10,762 221 11,530,986 {3,438,909) 7,998 852 {1,643,783) 4,016,520 (2,221,854} 1,843,923 {6,646,808) (876,666)
13,108,862
159,348
(2,675,723)

171,734
10,762 221

et
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PROFIT / {LLOSS) DISTRIBUTION TO DEPOSITOR'S POOL

General remunerative depositors' pools / IERS pools / Treasury Pools
2018
Profit Profit rate and | Mudarib [ Percentage of | Profit Profit rate
; iod sharing weightage share Mudarib Share | rate return
Remunerative pools Perio ratio announcement| (Rupees transferred refurn distributed
{average} - period in '000) through Hiba | earned

General Pool - PKR Jan to Dec 2018 50% Monthly 2,828,307 26.5% 7.8% 4.9%
General Pool - FCY Jan to Dec 2018 70% Monthly 60,240 3.1% 21% 0.7%
Islamic Export Refinance Pool Jan to Dec 2018 86% Monthly - - 5.9% 2.0%
Treasury Pool Jan to Dec 2018 94% Variable - - 7.1% 7.0%
Special Depositors' Pool Nov to Dec 2018 50% Variable 116,862 35.6% 12.9% 8.8%

COMPLAINT MANAGEMENT
Mechanism of the Compliant Management Unit

The Bank has a designated separate and independent Complaint Management Unit {CMU) under Corporate Communicalion Depariment
to handle complaints / grievances of the customers as per the Consumer Giievances Handling Mechanism (CGHM) policy isstied by SBP.
The unit is efficiently performing its rele and it is totalty independent in scrutinizing, investigating and effictent closures of the complaints /
queries raised by customars,

The unit's core focus is the quick and efficient resolution of the complalats, analyse root cause of complaints and taking necessary
measures to ensure its non-recurrance and to improve lhe service qualily, The statistical data provided by CMU enables the concerned
deparlments / units in improving performance and provisian of qualily service to the customers.

Lodgement of complaints

The complaint fodgement procedure is adequalely displayed in all our branches as well as on our Corporate  website
v albaraka.com.pk. Further, details regarding lodgement of a complaint to Banking Mohtasib Pakistan and State Bank of Pakislan are
also prominently displayed.

The Bank receive complaints from following sources:

1) Phone Banking / call centre
2} Letter/ CEO Office / Drop Box { Email
3) Banking Mohtasib Pakistan / SBP

During 20118, the Bank received 6,017 complaints through different channels, out of which 98.9% were investigated and resolved. The
Bank follows defined standards, practices and regulatory requirements in resolution of complaints lodged with the Bank,

Sieps of compliant resolution or handling of complaint
Fundamentel steps of compliant handling as defined by SBP in BC & CPD Circular No. 01 of 2016 being followed in the Bank are as

1) Acknowledgment of receipt of complaint.

2} Invesligation and tagging of compliant to relevant depariment / branches.

3) Interim update to customer, if complaint resolistion exceeds the defined timeline.
4) Inlimation of resaolution of complaint to customer,

5) Rool cause analysis of the complaint.

6) Suggestions for required actions and ifs non-recurrence.

7} Issuing monthly MIS o all the stakeholders.

New initiatives

The Bank has introduced the roo! cause anaiysis of complaints which are of regular nature along with the monitoring of severai key
service indicators at branch level to deep dive in the actual reason for the complaint.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Correspondirg figures have been re-arranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparisons. There were no signiflcant
reclassificalions / restatements during the year excepl as disclosed in note 2.1.2 and as disclosed befow.

{Rupees In '000)

Transfer from Transfer to Aggregate
Deposils Bills payable 1,968,979
GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.
DATE OF AUTHORISATION .
07 MAR 7019

These financlal statements were au£1orized for issue on by the Board Elgirectors of the Bank,
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Annexure - |}
OF RUPEES 500,000 OR ABOVE DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31

----Rupees in thousands----

31 December 31 December
ﬂ\,ames 2018 2017
|Indus Hospltal e S I B 10_02@- e
‘Alamgir Welfare Trust International - - I | S /7 71
SC Infrastructure and development scheme o 7,500 T
{The Citizens Foundation B - o T 7,200 _ 3,000
Shah|d Afridi Foundation 5000 e
\HELP Internalional Welfare Trust I S ¥ T ) |
IAfzal Memorial ThaFassemla Foundation R | B 000 . 2,000
{Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer Hospital & Research Centre _ 280}
i&hdukat Khanum Memorial Trust e b 2,500
\Patient's Behbud Sociely For Akhu_ o , _ . .2500 1,500
{Health Oriented Preventive Education (HOPE) e 4900
'l‘ wily Educational Serwceq Foundatlon ) R 1,600 | 1 600
- ayeban Pakistan B o . B 1,830 1, Sb()
lNamaf Educaiion Foundation . _ _e3sl
\Al Mustata Trust - 1,000} o
Thsan Trust e 1,000 ] -
IKarigar Training Institute B o 1,000 -
|Shifa International Hospital Ltd B o 1000 o
Saylani Welfare Internanonal | Trust e 1L 1,000 _ ‘
(Caravan of Life Pakistan Trust i 1,000 I
- 1Lahore Busmessmen Assocration For _Rehab;ittatlon Of The Disabled Punjab_____i . Ap00l 1,000 |
|Patients Aid Foundation o i 1,000 _ 1,000
lAman Instn!ute_z for Vocan(_)na_l Tralnlng - o - | 3 _,9'6_7,' - _
Tasneem Qﬁaﬁrﬁnar e ] ] 919 || 7 j"_ ]
fH:ra Foundation SChooI {HEES) e ; j_ 7207 —_7; B
INorth West Genera!_ Hospatal B 700 [ - __;
|!BP School of Special Education o800 S S
'Bint-e- Fatima Old Home Trust - o o_ose0gt o - ]
'Child Care Foundation of Pakistan _ _ - R | 500 o _E
IF amily Welfare Society - Mumtaz Girls School - .. s001 .
h{ ma Kidney Care Hospital I | 500 I
1Patel Hospital-Patel Foundation b 800G -
Il\/h,:hammad Asif o o o _ 500 -
National Epilepsy Centre o _ o _ 500 -~ ]
[Parents Voice Association . 800
[Bakhtawar Amin Memorial Trust - S | S | ______1_(100
‘Burn And Children Care Welfare Organization e 1 1,000
‘Endowment Fund Trust {Gc University Lahore) e | - 0 1,000
lindus Foundation o B | B 1, 000
'Khairun Nisa Hospital Foundation I | o= W 1,000
‘(,hlldren Health & Education Foundation (Chaefy B | R S | R £ - )
Care Foundation B S | R 500
IGre(,n Crescent Trust B ) I ) 500
Hira Foundatlon Academy S S I I S | N 500
‘lbrahlm Trust Gujranwala o - 3 el P 500 {
Sos Chlldrens Village . L L S 500
'Sundas Foundatlon ) . B o J o ',,,J 500 )
75,543 20,245




